igenda

GRAND RABIDS-KENT COUNTY

II

CONVENTION r{ ARENA AUTHORITY
M

NIERTAINMENT. CCNVENTION., SHOW & EPORIS FACILITIES

m

Board of Directors

Friday | December 5| 2014

Following CAA Operations Committee Meeting
Kent County Commission Chambers
300 Monroe Avenue, NW| Grand Rapids | MI

1. Call to Order and Chairman’s Comments

2. Area 2 Parking Study Findings — Progressive AE

3. Minutes of November 7, 2014

4. Committee Reports

A. Operations Committee
i. Energy Audit and Capital Assessment

B. Finance Committee

i. Monthly Financial Reports
a. Acceptance of Consolidated October 2014
Financial Statements
b. SMG - Van Andel Arena® and DeVos Place®
October 2014 Financial Statements

ii. SMG Special Purpose Financial Statements as of and for the
Years Ended June 30, 2014 and 2013~ Deloitte & Touche, LLP

5. Letting of RFP for Possible Area 2 Development

6. Van Andel Arena® Show Fund

7. SMG Report and Facilities Calendars

8. Public Comment

9. Adjournment

Next Meeting Date: Friday, January 16, 2015

After CAA Finance Committee Meeting

Steve Heacock
Information

Action

Action

Action
Information

Action

Action
Action

Rich MacKeigan



¥10¢ 'S J2quia33q
WO aeanIssalbord mmm
¥992 " 19¢ 919 d

SZS6y TN Py puesy Apnis Aljiqisesq ainonuis buied eualy [spuy Uep

[anIssa1b04d

RS SN b 0 A Tt ST EI
F & "

Lo s -

e ==
S e e
-1
et
et e
e
s
===




Arena SOUTH
?

ect accomplish
progressive)| e

is proj
?

iorities

Create Design Principles.

What should th
Define success?

Establish Pr

”
e
)
o
£
@
S
()
o
o
L
X~
s
l—

ision

\'

“pRuyoud Adus 5| ascdind Aue $0) JuaLINOP Siy) 30 UdILIOd AUE JO UOIINPOIdaY TauME [ENpIAPUN Ayl £ SN 10} £2es PEpUALUL SIY] "3y 2AISsaIB01] Jo AIadoId [ENY3R{A3UI 3y SEIUALINIOP SIYY U) USIEWLION 3Y]



4P aNsS3J60sd

(149Q) >uf spidey pueln umojumoq

sioqubisN

suonesdp ONS

SuoJled/sIapjoH 1eas xog

SS0J4D) 1010 puk 93] uo Asusiq ‘snast) Asjieg pue wnuieg
sadInLaS bupped spidey pueio jo AD

uswilaedaq adijod sprdey puein

uoizepuno4 Alunwuwo?) spidey pueio

suyyun spidey puesn

s1ybisur

'S|eon

Jsuoneadsy

;S1uswalinbay

¢ysijdwonoe 10afoud siyy pjnoys 1eym

' N

Lk 0

siopjoyaxers
pabebugy

H1NOS eusly

1deouor) | wesbold | UoISIA

"PEMQIyOId Adliis s1 ascdind Aue 10§ JUBWNIOP S1y) 43 UdEd AUE jO UORINPOIdaY TaUME [ENPIAIPUN 3yl £q ash Jo} 43105 PEPURLLI SI Y 3y 2M55aIBOI4 Jo Quadeid [EMa]RIL! ay) £ IUBWNIAP SIYI Ul UONERUIOJUI 3U]



|anssasboid

'ZZNQ UeqJn Ue 3)eaid pue ‘UMOUMOP JO dlqe) uegin
8Y) 03 103UU0d dv.h_ﬂu.mu JIUI0U0d ue 3q ‘Auanoe uewysapad poddns ‘suejd

Buioisin 3311351Q YPINOS BUBIY 34 Hoddns 4 117 JH | JOYONT

suopesado1oddns pue N4 JAOYUINT

asaydsowse buizibiaua

pue Buidxa ‘aindas ‘ajes e yum muzmmﬂ_m&xm ._.mw D-.U ayiasueyuy o«

WD) 241 104 uonesauab Jyosd pue anuansl

paseanu i euaY 34104 A | [IGVIA JINONOD3 2nsu3

JU31P 3y} 104 aseD SsauIsnq ay3 Bunenjead pue ‘saniunisoddo jo uoneziwndo ‘anbojelp
pue uoneddiued ‘sisfjeue ‘uojeasasqo ybnoay) paysiidwodde si siy| "pajeniead aq [im
suois1dap 329f0ad a1niny yoiym uodn pue ‘aasiyde o} uonNjos ubisap ayy s}adxe JusiP
a3 Jey) sjeob ajgesnseaw Jo 135 1ea|d ‘UBALIP-3N|eA € se paulyap ale s3|didulid ubisaq

HLNOS eusly

“pRNG



Arena SOUTH
progressive

. TRUCK/BUS TRAFFIC

700 PUBLIC SPACES

78,790 SF
27,304 SF
22,924 SF

Vision | Program | Concept
Concept Option B - Preferred Option

“PIGIyesd Aouis s1 asedind AUE 10j JUBWINIOP S1y) 30 UDRICd AUE JO UOKINPOIIRY JauMC [enplaput 3y AQ 3sh 10§ Aj31es PEpUBLL S1Y T 2455216014 0 <sadoid [EMIERAI A1 51 1UAUNDIP SIYL UT UONEWLIOJ aY]



I
f Tr SO vep g Sweso | SURpEL IRy 3 : u
=) ey FEUE ) : 2
8 . F“;— g 73 ™ B TR -~ R o i ke r'5 ) Qj
g .;{.) i ‘:_ = :‘;‘4 oh N 'g
g Q
< el e 1 =4
g hekd T 1 1 (=
4 } ATt : o
| Pt it I i e a

R A Ao 1

LRI g |
e [ ¢ 7
e | R

H

EASE SPACE $177 %

wrar

LEASE SIACE S0 58

i
§
B
]
:q":
.;flla
&
onf -
o
L}
- ws
Q.
L
O
(o}
O c el
— 8
E 40: . " : LY ?.' b
o g o Pridp « ‘. x’ " Ty
a 2 A--—-_J\L.w e O :__A\ . = » ;
| % - by
S| 3 g N S —
o | ¢ " 7
_____ |
c | ok
(o))
| £
N -
> | &

"PRUGIYOId A121s 5| astdind Aue 40} JUIWNIOP Siyy 3 LOGd AUE JO USRINPOIAaY JaUMG [ENpIApPUN 3U3 £ 3SR 10 43(Cs DEpUBILI $1Y] 3V sMssallold o £y1adord EnidEjait ay) §| IUBINDOP SIYL UI UDTEWLIOJN 3y



Arena SOUTH

proqressivp\ ae

BEEENERAAERARREAANRAEED |

YRR e

i

L

g

TEYEY oy |

Parking Concourse Level Plan

P23iqiyo1d A3auls $1 350dind AUE 10) WIWINDOR Siixd 19 UDHIOd AUE Jo UOHINEOIdaY 13UMC [ENPIAPU 31 4Q 95N JO) 42105 DEPUBILL $13] '3y @AssaIB014 1o adeId [EMSe||aIul i) St IUBWIN30P SIY Ul udijewop 3y}



Gt e megg e Y ST

e "

Arena SOUTH

progressive|-

| Program | Concept

1ston

Parking Level 03 Plan

Vv

BANGyeId Aoiis 31 asedind Aue 10§ JUSWINDOD Siig) 3o UDLIOD AUE JO UOHINEOIdDY AUMG ENPIAIPUT 3U) 4G 35N 10} 42105 pepualul 1T 3y

d J0 &adTid (ENI3[91UI 41 §11UAWNIOP SIYL Ul UDEULIDYU Y]



- ——

3 g Sweso ) "‘Wu(uz’v‘ L T —
e " § - % e

R 2

Arena SOUTH

progressive| -

o

S S —‘l"‘—"_‘g-.bl-—__l—?‘n"—‘— A B

Vision | Program | Concept

Parking Level 04 Plan

"PRUIyoId Apotiis st asedind AuE J6j JUALIDOP s1y) 2 UdEd AUE Jo UORINPOIdY JAUMO [ENPIAPUI 3 AQ 3SR 10} A0S PEPUBILL SI Y] T 2AI5531601d jO Qiadeid [EMIEaIUL Ay SEIUBWINGIP SIYY LN USHEULIOUT Y]



2©|aAssa1b01d

k!
2 : = |
= = arz
= > eers ¢ 0w o £
Gz — =T 1
= — — Ta
g i

ATVMAIS TVILN3LOd

I E i : .. == E

HLNOS eualy ydaouo)



Arena SOUTH

progressive|:

Vision | Program | Concept
3D View - Looking Southwest

‘PRIAIOID AND1S 5} 3sedind Aue 10f JUBWNDOP SIY 30 UIIC AUE Jo UOIINPOITRY JAUMC [ENPIAPU 21 £Q 3SN 10} 42j05 PEPUBLL 11 Y EAISS2I501d JO A1ad0Id {EN)IRYAI By) $1 TUAINIOP S Ul UDHEULIOJUI 3Y]



Arena SOUTH

progressive| -

west

Concept

ooking Nor

3D View -

pauqiyeld Apains st ascdind Aue 10j JUIWNI0D Syl 2 VoId AUE Jo UolINEOIdRY Jaume jEnpIApU ay) £4q asn 10} A2jos pEpuatu: S1Y] 3y 2155316014 J0 K13d0IG JEM32{[A1UI Ay $11UBWNIP SIYL UL UONLULOJU 3Y]|



Arena SOUTH

progressive| e

o

| R
W Atdl 7 Jal 1]
WA o e e
77 oo 4 it A 5,
SERL A T

Vision | Program | Concept
3D View - Looking Northwest

‘pauAIyod Agaiats 51 ascdind Aue 1o) JUBWNDOP Siy3 §> U0 AUE JO UONINPOIIRY JIUME [EAPIAPUI 3UY Aq 35N 10) A0S PEpUBLL 11| 3y 2AISSAI60I4 Jo Aadold [eniaEaIl 3y} 51 1UBWN30P SIYL U1 UaNEWLIoJUl 3y)



Arena SOUTH

Concept

progressive|:

3

- f
i
A
i
1

1

(
{
|

V¥ 215516014 Jo Aadord [eni3EiBul ay) §11UBWNIOP SIU U1 UdNEUWOJUl 3Y]






MINUTES OF THE GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY
CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY

JOINT MEETING OF

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND COMMITTEES
Friday, November 7, 2014

Attendance

Members Present:

Members Absent:

Finance Committee:

Operations Committee:

Liaison Committee:

Community
Inclusion Group:

Staff/Others:

Steve Heacock, Chairperson

Lew Chamberlin
George Heartwell
Charlie Secchia
Floyd Wilson, Jr.
Richard Winn

Birgit Klohs

Joe Jones
Jana Wallace

Tom Almonte
Scott Buhrer

John Canepa
Glenn Del Vecchio
John Van Fossen

Rosalynn Bliss
Diane Jones

Chris Arnold
Mandy Cech
Evette Pittman
Darius Quinn
Ruben Ramos
Lou Solis

Jessica Ann Tyson

Kathy Bart
Tom Bennett
Henri Boucher
Chris Danner
Jeff Dubin
Tim Gortsema
Mike Guswiler
Jim Harger
Lynne lke
Todd Johnson
John Kendall

Kathryn Kendall, Ph.D.

Peter Kjome
Kristopher Larson
Rose Littleton
Mike Lloyd

SMG

Experience Grand Rapids
ShowSpan, Inc.

Once Broadway Musical
SAVOR

Grand Rapids Griffins

West Michigan Sports Commission
The Grand Rapids Press/MLive
SMG

SMG

DK Security

DK Security

Grand Rapids Symphony
Downtown Grand Rapids, Inc.
Staffing, Inc.

Broadway Grand Rapids

Item 3



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting
November 7, 2014 -2

Chris Machuta SMG

Rich MacKeigan SMG

Sindia Narber DK Security

Drew Nikodem IATSE

Lee Ann Platschorre DK Security

Kyle Post SMG

Brian Ryks Gerald R. Ford International Airport

Lauren Saelens DK Security

Eddie Tadlock SMG

Susan Waddell CAA

Jim Watt SMG

Rod Weeber SMG

Richard Wendt Dickinson Wright

Robert White CAA

Paul Ymker BlueWater Technologies
1. Call to Order and Chairman’s Comments

Steve Heacock, Chairperson, called the meeting to order at 7:45 a.m. Secretary/Treasurer Richard Winn
recorded the meeting minutes. Roundtable introductions followed. Chair Heacock explained that the
CAA is a partnership with the City, County, and State. The CAA is governed by a seven-member board:
Chair Heacock and Rick Winn are County appointees; Mayor Heartwell and Birgit Klohs are City
appointees; Charlie Secchia is a State appointee; and Lew Chamberlin and Floyd Wilson are CAA Board
appointees who were proposed by Experience Grand Rapids. The CAA was established by the State of
Michigan in 1999 and is a governmental entity created to encourage economic development by owning
and operating sports and entertainment facilities. The CAA employs 1.5 employees and has contract with
SMG for additional executive-level services.

The CAA has a $20 million capital reserve thanks to efficient construction of DeVos Hall, careful
stewardship and the funders’ foresight. The CAA needs to ensure that these funds last through the useful
life of the buildings and certainly through the retirement of the related bonds. Two years ago, the CAA
commissioned an economic impact study that found the CAA’s economic impact totaled $350 million in
Just its first six years of operation. Just for Fiscal Year 201 1, the total economic impact from the CAA
venues was over $58.4 million, generating nearly 700 Jjobs and $16.6 million in new earnings for
households in Kent County. Chair Heacock explained that expansion and renovation of DeVos Place®
convention center was funded, in part, with bonds that are repaid with the Kent County hotel/motel tax.
Chair Heacock recognized Kent County for continuing to pay the debt service on the bonds from its
general fund, when the hotel/motel tax fell short during the recession. The Van Andel Arena® opened in
1996 and is successful beyond expectations. The Arena is rated nationally and worldwide for a mid-size
arena (12,100 seats). The Arena has 44 private suites and 2 public suites, banquet rooms, and the
Intermission Restaurant operated by SMG Savor. New at DeVos Performance Hall is remodeled
women’s restroom increasing capacity by 50% and modifications to the theater stage to allow for large
Broadway productions.

Chair Heacock concluded his remarks by stating the work of the CAA could not be accomplished without
volunteers. He thanked the committee members for their commitment and hard work.



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting
November 7, 2014 -3

2. Business Partner Presentations
A. BlueWater Technologies

Paul Ymker, Director of Audio Visual Services for BlueWater Technologies, is housed at DeVos Place®
convention center and coordinates the AV needs for client events. Founded in 1985, BlueWater is located
in three states and has a staff of 184 employees. BlueWater’s award winning services include meeting
and event tech, audio visual integration, interactive engagements, fixtures, and displays.

Meeting & Event Technology: For a Spectrum Health event, BlueWater transformed an ordinary
banquet space using projection into a lush conservatory that changed from daytime to nighttime. For the
GM Auto Show, BlueWater has provided the technology, programming, and AV logistics, as well as
ongoing AV and IT support, for 20 years. For the Transplant Games of America, BlueWater
conceptualized the event staging, provided the scenic elements and video equipment and managed
production and day-of logistics.

AV Integration: Macomb County contracted with BlueWater to consult, design, program, and install
AV technology for real-time coloration between multiple agencies. BlueWater maximized customer
enjoyment and retention at Buffalo Wild Wings with upgraded technology for sports viewing, music, and
gaming.

Interactive Engagements: For the NIKE women’s marathon, BlueWater enabled participants to update
their Facebook status automatically while on the run. At Ford Motor Company, BlueWater designed,
programmed, and created content for an avatar-guided interactive display to educate consumers on the
features, benefits, and options of each vehicle.

Fixtures and Displays: BlueWater owns a 63,000 sq. ft. production and warehouse facility in Mesick,
Michigan. The engineering and production teams are highly skilled and experienced in working with all
materials and provide a full range of services from design through installation. Curves hired BlueWater
to design and built three different “Ikea-like” modular displays and 1,000 fixtures for quick and easy
installation for the franchisee program. BlueWater has been fabricating and installing Wells Fargo
Bank’s in-branch merchandising elements since 2004.

B. Downtown Grand Rapids, Inc. (DGRI)

Kristopher Larson, President and CEO, explained that DGRI is the singular management body for the
staffs and resources of the Downtown Development Authority, Downtown Improvement District, and
Monroe North Tax Increment Finance Authority. DGRI’s mission is to make Grand Rapids the most
admired, emulated, attractive, and well-run city of its size in the nation — with an unsurpassed reputation
as a forward-thinking, bright spot to watch for how to do ‘downtown.” In its decision-making process,
DGRI looks for guidance from three alliances: the alliance for investment advisers on projects related to
development programs, planning, economic development and public realm investments; the alliance for
livability advises on projects related to cleanliness, beautification, safety, and asset management; and the
alliance for vibrancy advises on projects related to marketing, promotions, and events.

From 1990 to 2000, Grand Rapids’ population increased 64% from 60,000 to almost 100,000; and from
2000 to 2010 increased another 15%. In the past two decades, downtown has seen residential growth of
188%, with 800 units currently under constructional. The commercial sector enjoys an 83% occupancy
rate. There are 246 merchants, representing retail, food service, personal care, and other services. The
diverse mix includes two bridal shops, two beauty salons, a comic book store, a home goods store, florist
and food service. Fiscal year 2014 development totals are impressive, as well, and include 534,820 sf



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting
November 7, 2014 - 4

renovated office space, 83415 sf new office space, 254 new market rate residential units, 122 renovated
affordable housing units, 206 new affordable housing units, and 105,527 new active use spaces.

Current advocacy and planning projects include parklets and Arena south visioning. DGRI also
addresses mobility options, parks and open space, and downtown cleanliness/beauty. DGRI’s
ambassador program assists visitors with many services, including providing directions, umbrella escorts,
safety escorts, contact with emergency services, removal of graffiti, and contact with businesses. DGRI’s
marketing and social media efforts have resulted in two videos that have received 50,000+ views, 5,000+
Facebook ‘likes,” 4,00 Twitter followers, and 235 Instagram followers. DGR has produced events, such
as Movies in the Park, with an estimated direct economic impact of $78,211. Over the past year, there
were more than 100 events in downtown Grand Rapids including ArtPrize, 15 runs/walks, 6 music
festivals, 10 holiday celebrations, 21 fundraisers, 10 cultural festivals, and 7 sports and auto events.

In the year ahead, DGRI will focus its efforts on greater accessibility, an enlivened public realm,
inclusion and gratitude. This will be accomplished through GR Forward, an action plan for downtown,
the riverfront, and the next generation. GR Forward has an interactive space at 50 Louis space that is
open Thursday-Saturday, 3:00pm-7:00pm, through November 21. DGRI invites the public to become
involved to share thoughts and ideas.

C. DK Security

Kathryn Kendall, Ph.D., Executive Vice President, started in 1996 as a first host in the Van Andel
Arena® lobby. Dr. Kendall is a forensic psychologist with over 15 years of security services. Dr.
Kendall worked her way up to Chief Operating Officer, then Senior Vice President. Her responsibilities
include strategic planning, public relations, marketing and business development, documents, and client
relations. DK Security was founded in 1995 by retired US Marshal John Kendall and retired FBI agent
Robert DuHadway, mainly as an investigations firm. As client needs evolved, DK broadened its services
to include event management, uniform security, investigations, armed security, background screening,
honorline, loss prevention, alcohol/tobacco compliance, fingerprinting, and security audits. DK Security
has three branch locations, employs over 1,300 security personnel, and has annual revenue of $17+
million. DK’ varied clients include hospitals, convention centers, airports, military bases, festivals,
banking facilities, construction sides, manufacturing facilities, and colleges/universities.

D. Gerald R. Ford International Airport

Brian Ryks, AAE, Executive Director, landed here in July 2012. The Airport’s vision is to be West
Michigan’s commercial service airport of choice. Values include safety, security, customer satisfaction
collaboration, and continuous improvement. The Airport’s mission is to provide safe, security,
environmentally sensitive, economically self-sustaining and globally infused air transportation facilities
responsive to regional needs. The Airport board includes three CAA members: Steve Heacock, Birgit
Klohs, and Floyd Wilson, Jr. In 2009, a new close-in covered parking structure was built at a cost of
$137 million, and included additional short- and long-term parking spaces, ramps-to-terminal roadway
canopy, pedestrian sky bridges, roadway and utility improvements, vehicle entrance plaza, improved
rental car facilities. and an intermodal transit station. New concessions that include local flavor have been
constructed for Bell’s brewing and Grand Rapids Magazine. GFIA is one of 100 that offer TSA pre-
check, hearing loop, valet parking, and therapy dog program. GFIA boats 110 daily passenger flights
to/from 24 non-stop destinations. In 2013, GFIA served 2,237,979 passengers, an increase of 4.8% over
2012. Southwest Airlines landed in August 2013 and has direct flights to over 40 airports. The
Southwest effect has lowered quarterly airfares from $455 to $427. Additional airlines to fly in/out of
GFIA include AirTran, New American/USAIR Service, and United.

New airport concourse improvements will include sky lights, column chadding, and a terrazzo floor. Also
planned are consolidate checkpoint and marketplace, Gerald R. For memorial display area, and a new



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting
November 7, 2014 - 5

public observation deck. Airports across the globe are evaluated via passengers’ views on 34 service
indicators including cleanliness, parking, courtesy of staff, concessions, and security screening. GRIA is
ranked Top Five Best Airports in the World by size, 2-5 million passengers.

E. Staffing, Inc.

Rose Littleton, Regional Events Manager, stated that Staffing, Inc. is the 4™ largest privately-held
employer in West Michigan. For over 25 years, Staffing has been managing and employing associates.
Its primary mission is to create strong, personal partnerships with its temporary employees and customers.
This allows Staffing to improve the communities in which its customers operate. Under this model,
Staffing has grown significantly and has expanded into other HR services. Today, Staffing has six
divisions that support its position as the only full-service human resource outsourcing organization based
in the West Michigan market.

Staffing provides professional hospitality staffing to premiere caterers, event planners, hotels, restaurants,
university, and event venues in West Michigan. Staffing delivers trained, courteous, reliable service staff
to small and large scale events. Staffing provides extending training with an emphasis in customer
service. Prior to working an event, Staffing employees are given an orientation with specific
requirements for each position and client customer service knowledge. Staff become more than their
positions, they become ambassadors of the building.

Staffing perks include scheduling software that allows staff to view their schedule at any time with a
smart phone or computer, a client portal with real-time access to information, and training videos.

Staffing customers include concert halls, arena complexes, banquet centers, cultural and fine art venues,
golf courses, university events, baseball stadiums, and convention centers. Staffing is active in the
community to which it belongs. Employees at Staffing choose community organizations to support, such
as Habitat for Humanity, Big Brothers and Big Sisters, Gilda’s Club Grand Rapids, Vicky’s Pet
Connection, and the Sandy Hook organization. Staffing believes that helping and caring are not limited to
a 9-5 schedule.

3. Minutes of Prior Meetings

Motion by Mr. Heartwell, support by Mr. Winn, to approve the October 3, 2014, Minutes. Motion
carried,

4. Committee Reports
A. Operations Committee
Mr. Chamberlin stated there was nothing new to report since the October meeting.
Mr. Tom Bennett of Experience Grand Rapids provided an overview of the CVB’s recent sales activities,
marketing efforts, and major bid presentations. Last month, sales staff booked four groups totaling 5,800

attendees and 3,800 room nights. The State Games of America will be coming to town in the summer of
2017, bringing 5,000 additional athletes.



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting
November 7, 2014 — 6

B. Finance Committee
i. Monthly Financial Reports
a. Acceptance of Consolidated September 2014 Financial Statements

Mr. White reviewed the year-to-date financial dashboard for the period ended September 30, 2014. Last
September, there were nine Arena events and this year there were 13 events, five of which were concerts.
Last September, event income totaled $146,077 and this year event income amounted to $682,926. At
DeVos Place®, 72 events occurred last September and 96 occurred this year. Event income last
September equaled $646,080 and this year event income amounted to $835,978. Consolidated operating
income last September totaled ($995,742) and this year equaled ($342,621).

Motion: Mr. Winn, supported by Mr. Chamberlin, moved to accept the Consolidated September 2014
Financial Statements. Motion carried,

b. SMG Van Andel Arena® and DeVos Place® September 2014
Financial Statements

The SMG financial statements were included in the agenda packet as information items.
5. SMG Report and Facilities Calendars

Mr. MacKeigan introduced Chris Benevento, Savor Regional Vice President. Mr. Benevento praised the
Van Andel Arena® as one of Savor’s top accounts, which is used as a benchmark for other venues. Mr.
Benevento expressed his appreciation to the CAA Board for the support given to Savor.

Mr. MacKeigan introduced Chris Danner, Stage Manager for the Broadway show “Once.” Formerly,
with SMG as box office manager, Mr. Danner has been the company manager for several national tours
including 9 to 5, Legally Blonde, The Color Purple, The Addams Family, Annie, My Fair Lady, Blue
Man Group, and many others. Mr. Danner is pleased to be back in town and calls GR home. He stated
that the new changes to the DeVos Performance Hall stage will allow large shows, such as Wicked, Lion
King, and Phantom of the Opera, to play in Grand Rapids. Mr. Danner added that it is imperative for the
arts organizations to work together to provide a united front. Many places are offering tax incentives for
shows to play in their city. Chair Heacock offered his congratulations and added that Once is a
phenomenal show.

Public Comment

None.

7. Board Member Comments
None.

8. Adjournment

The meeting adjourned at 9:30 a.m.

Richard A. Winn, Recording Secretary



Item 4.A.i.

@ Van Andel Arena’ /

Do v e —
Privete Dacopdmess fm Poti Facsilows.

DeVos Place

MEMORANDUM

To: CAA Operations Committee
CAA Board of Directors

From: Richard MacKeigan - Regional General Manager
Date: November 13, 2014
Re: Energy Audit and Capital Assessment

I am requesting approval to amend the FY 2015 budget to include a $50,000 line item for
“Energy Audit and Capital Assessment.” An energy assessment study would evaluate potential
energy alternatives and develop a long term energy plan.

Specifically, the study will:

Develop in-depth review of existing infrastructure and operating objectives

Profile electric and thermal energy load including daily usage and peak demand

Analyze energy costs, long-term supply contracts, and pricing trends

Analyze energy efficiency work that has been completed and assess potential future

reduction

¢ Evaluate onsite conditions and viability of connecting into the complexes’ electrical and
thermal grids

® Recommend conceptualized energy efficiency options

This study is also being done by the downtown Amway properties.
The study would be led by Progressive AE, working together with Spart Sustainable Partners.

Should you have any questions, please contact me at your convenience. Thank you for your
consideration.

ACTION REQUESTED: Amend the FY 2015 budget to include a $50,000 line item for “Energy Audit
and Capital Assessment.”



Item 4.B.i.a.

o0

v

(ag]

adeq

d[qeredwo)) a1e-03-183 X
SIUNO20Y SANRHSIUIWPY

d[qeredwio) a)e(]-031-183 X
(IourenQ) [eosiy 1) 18803101 Buijjoy
@99¢]d SOA9(

d[qeredwo)) a1e(]-031-183 X
(401renQ) feosIy 1) 1s83310,] Burjjoy
@PeUaIy [3pUy UBA

S3JON JueoluSig

d[qeredwo)) aye(g-03-18a X

(30uenQ) [eOsIy 1) 15802101 Burpjoy
Anproeg Aq Arewnung

pleoqusecy

PI0T ‘I€ 43q030Q
poday [erourul] pajepijosuo))
AoyNY BUdIYy/uonuIAUO))
Ayuno) yuayy-spidey pue.is



(1ze'sie) ¢ (isv'zse) §  (ocz'1292) § S3ueeE pung uo umeiq - JoN
[(600°c62) (Lev'eSL°L) Juswaoeldayiedey/fended

$ aulodu}

Jea) Jougd

SUIUOW ¢ - palepIoSuLoy

(=

66.°929 ¢ 951969 $§ 91899 §  6c0Zcr § LELZYEL § SYY'voz L $ 3UIoOU] JUSA

sTr'ey 09¢c'6¢ 0zs'ce 885201 0z2°001 £9628 esuepueny

zs v 9¢ ISt 1L 181 SjueA3
[en}oy —Jebpng Jes Ioud jenjoy eBpng 189, 10lig

8pe. | JUORUBAUOY

SJuaA] iy

2908|d SOA3Q

20269 § L9z’0zs ¢ S.5°8L1 615598 § AT 658°60¢ 8WOdU| JUBA]

69£°09 005°6S L8T'LL ovzZ'eLL 00s°ecl 900°8S aduepueny

9 L 4 0Z 1£4 14 SjuaAnz
femoy __eBpng_ iseA Joud [enjoy Jebpng es) Joug

SJUSA Iy

¥L0Z ‘1€ 43q03o0
(syluop p) ajeq-oj-seap
pPieoqyseq [e1oueu;4

1LY 2INC AT ¥ MO NS TNCIINT H

ALIYOHINY vwNaIYyVY / PonUn,._.ﬂ_wM:»<bauo_MW
‘g
zg)))
5
AINNOD ‘_.ZWVTWQ_-_&(N_ ANVID



“(b1/1/8
“(#1/91/) suonyeaouas age)s [[eH 2dueuLIO}Idg SOA3( ()

(LVE970°7) § (S66°278) 8  (L6s‘TID) S peecoe $  (126°s19)
($9¥°505°7) w (000°PES°T) (8L0°50Z°1) (690°Z16) (600°€627)
Sit‘eLy S00°90L 18t°768 £6€°S1T1 (Z16°T2¢)
Fz6‘oLy) (915°188) (915°188) (1LTTew) (s¥z6s1)
(9.5°€€9) (915°18L) (58,°878) (509°609) (081°6127)
759291 000°0L1 697'LyT veEL8I $£6°6S
€LY 998‘p9p CLE'SPS 1S9°100°1 (8LT'cSP)
(008°sh) (59Z°16) (s9z°1¢) (916°LY) (6¥£°€)
89.°L08 000918 000°918 L6S°6ZL £0¥°98
(§74(1%3) (698°662) (29¢917) 0L6°61¢€ (ze£'9€8)
(L£T'891) (LstoLn) (tszioLt) (o001 1) (Lsz'Ls)
(Lo9¥'1€1°0) (Pssise8s) (Fssise8°s) (920°506°¢) (8zs‘0€6°1)
6S¥°096°s$ v6°S0L's 6V 68LS 966°LEE Y ESHISH I
6I€LTS $S9°778 $29'sT6 £10°9¢€9 119682
(952°8L) ($59°L8) (ps9°L8) (068°vL) (boL'zI)
24 ¥39! PP1°651 r1°6S1 960901 8¥0°cS
1£69tT SOI‘ISL ZARZY L08'109 LTE 61T
(LgT'891) szoLn) (LszoLt) (o00°c11) (Lsz'Ls)
(S¥0°801°v) (£6L°256°€) (€6L°C56°€) (945°119°2) Liz\reen
1Ty § SITVL8Y ¢ v8I°LL6Y §  £8¢°6TEE § 108°L¥9°]
1837 J0LAg uMmm-_m Qewnsy oy jeg-03-183 4
B3 X -[Ing 0€/9-1/11 I€/01 - 1/L
PI0Z Ad SI10T A4
PI0Z ‘I€ J2qopQ

S107 ‘0¢ dung uipuy aeo jeasy

JPyo/Anpoey Aq L1euwung

) siaa0Aures 19fosd Teak-toud Jo 000‘py [ § pue
00°00€8$ snid (+1/9/9) 198pnq feurBuio sapnjou (1)

1S3J0N

samipuadxy ejrde) jo 1o synsay
samjipuadxg feyder

SuneaadQ/spassoay JIN )0 L

PYIO PN
sasuadxy
SANUIADY

P10

dAQ 30 (350D) spasdoag JoN
A13JeS ueLSIPay
Buyred
$s07] SuneiadQ 10N
934 2AnUIdU| -
$99, Juowadeuely sseq -
saujioe, - sesuadxy -
SINUBAYY - unersdp
131U UONRUIAUO)) B[] SOAI(

VVA Jo (350)) spaadoaq joN
A1o5es ueinsapay
Sunjreq
(ss07) swoouj Sunesadp 19N
934 AU -
S99, Judwaeuely aseq -
Saill1oe - sasuadxy -
SaNudAdY - Superadp
BUAIY [9pUY uBA

Auopny BUaIY/uonuIAUO) £)uno) Judy-spidey puein



(126°S19) ¢

(9€Z°129°D) §

(566°L78) §

(LPE920°7) §

(600°€62) (Lev'6sL'T) (000°vES°T) (S9t°505°7)
(T16°22¢) (66L198) $00°90L SII‘6LY
80 (S¥T'6S1) (£95°091) (s°€7) (915°18S) (rz6‘oLr)
(6'61) (081°612) (18.°z81) (o:81) (916°15L) (9L5°€£9)
8691 $€6°6S 812°Te 87 000°0L1 759°791
(&) (8LT'SSP) (z08‘zrp) 001 998‘p9p €TL LY
(s°59) (6v£°€) (+20°7) 611 (§9Z°1¢) (008°st)
(667) £0v°98 0sT'cTl ol 000918 89L°L08
6V (€€ 9¢€%) (820°v95) 9l (698°667) (SZ°6£€)
(s¢) (LST'LS) (sg€°65) Al (LszéoL) (L£z'891)
(s (8zs‘0g6'1) (958°68L°1) 8y (bSs°s£8°s) (LOY'I€1°9)
9°¢l £SHISH L €91°LLT I €y r6'SoL's 6S¥'096°S
71 119682 (PEP'8S7) 095 §59°778 6IELTS
(s'19) 9Lz ¥06°L) €11 (#59°L8) (964°8L)
00 8#0°¢cS 8¥0°'cS 00 P61 Pr1°6S1
1281 LTE6YT (845°€0€) 99 S91°ISL 1€6°9b+
(s (LsT'Ls) (6L0°95) i (LszoLt) (LET'891)
(S'v1) (YAl 7)) (960°1L1°1) g€ (€6L°T56°¢) (Sv0°801°Y)
V8L 108°Lv91  § L6S€T68 a3 SITVLI8Y § S1TCTLY
aBuey) 1€/01 - 1/L 1€/01 - 1/L aduey) 393png [eury
adejuadsag S10T Ad $10Z Ad 338)u0434 SI07 Ad y107 Ad
Je(Q-0 -48I7 [enuuy

Aoginy eusayuonusauo) £yuno) yuay-spidey pueis)

S107 ‘0¢ dung Suipuy Jea g Joj spual ], [erouBUL,
J93Q/Anpidey £q Aewwng 3a3png

sanyipuadxy [ende) jo JaN synsay
samipuadxy jenden

SunesadQ/spaddoad Jap (10 L

J3Y10 3N
sasuadxy
SaNUSASY

PRO

dAd 30 (350D) spaadosy JaN
A1ayes ueLysapay
Sunyuey
ss0 unesadgy 19N
93, aARUAOU] -
$394 judwasdeue)y asey -
saut1oe - sasuadxyg -
SanudALY - uneradp
19JU3) UOHUIAUOD) IIB|] SOAI(

VVA J0 (350)) spaadoag joN
A1a5eg UBLNSApa
Suryieq
(ss071) swoouj SunesadQ 19N
39, aAnudOY] -
$99] Juswaeue|y oseyq -
sautoe,] - sosuadxg -
SaNUAAIY - Bunesad(y
BUAIY [OpUY UBA



pa[[eoued (193pnq JS5$)
109f0xd a3eurelp unuayd 1 — gAQ "s3uiAes jJuesyIudis 18 paje[duwios aq o) s109fo1d a8euBis o119 JAQ
PUE J-IM YV A '103png Japun Jy6zc$ Ul ouIod 03 3urpuads 195(01d — 589010 1 Burjjoy 1suen) <1 —C798ed e
[ende)

Spua1 sdueLrea 193pnq Jueorjiudis oN e
BPYo

wa[qoid a1em1Jos dA]0saI
0} SUppIOM $30IAISS Sunyied oy ‘swajqoid Burpodai [eroueury A1) — 3unpreqg @90e]d SOASQ — € 98ed e
134 [e2s1y [y ay) 40] M18$ £q SP001] JON],, SSBAIOUI — }SBIIO o Buijjoy Ieueng) sl — 7988 e
(souepusne 866°201) 151 Y8 Ur Swed (ouBpUSNE OZL001) [€] 18 pa128pnq . ‘sueAg |1y, — [ 98ed e
@398]d SOAS(J

Teak [eosy [0y oY1 1oj Ye01$ £q «SP33201d 13N, 3SBAIOUL — ISBII0 SUI[[0Yy IoLiend) sl =798ed
Jeaf [easy Joud ayy
JO SHUOW INOJ IS 3Y) UI SHIOUO0D 0M] SNSIIA SNUIASY JUIAT UI 7/ L69% Pa1eI10ud3 SLa0U0o XIS — | 98 e

@eUdly [SpUY UBA

SQJON JuedIJIUTIg



"sasuadxe aoinies pajediogue

uey; JayBiy 19syo padjay Paduod YoInyD T ay} jO ssacons ay) se
BNU3AAL [[BI9AO U) YIUOW AU} 104 SjaA3] Pajabpng je pawuopad euase ayy

696°201 S9171S2 PeL'vSe 808709 128°6v2

- - ° -
696°201 S91°162 p€1'p58 808'v09 Lee'eve

- 0S0'ezl'y 0S0'e2t'y SiS'veL'e vLp'86E°L

- S8E'LLY'L S8 1LY'L 890'600'1 L1829

- 096'61 096'61 89¢'6 265°01

- PE2'96 PE2'96 182'92 £56'61

- £62'8pL £62'8p1 S0S'vLL 88.'¢e

- Syy'989'L 9vb'989'L 8rS'L10'L 868719

- Sv8'182 Spg'Lee 9v2'661 665'28

- 90v'6£2 90¥'662 802'044 861'69

- 18p'6L1 L8Y'6LL LSE'V0L 0EL'sSL
696°201 SiZ'vL8'y v8L°2L6Y £82'62E°c 108°29'1
2vi'se SZL'E1S' 298'2v5'2 €80'LPS°L vi8'100°1
12262 060'198°C LIEVEY'T 0€€'88.'L 286'SY9
vLE've 605've2'L £88'952'L £28'268 080998
£58°'8p 185'921'tL PEV'SLL'L 205's68 126'6L2
(201°12) 000'925 868'¥5S 8S9'LvY orZeLL
(2 001 26 8L 02

FONVINVA 3Ad 3Ad

139ang IvioL 704 Q1A

*SHUSWIWOD

JALLNIONI H3 14V SISNIAXI JA0EY INNIAIY 1IN

334 JALLNIONI SS31

S3ISNIJX3I 3A0EV INNIATY L3N

"dX3 103YIONI IVL0L

Qv3H¥3A0

NINQY X TVYMANS
ONLLYIS ABNXNT
301440 X08
SNOILYH3dO
ONILINYVYIN
FONYNI4
3ALLND3IX3
SISNIDX3 LIIHIANI

IWOON! Tvi0L
3WOINI Y2HLO TV10L

IFNOONI LNIAT TVLOL

IWOINI AUV TINONY
SWNOONI ANIAZ 103HIG

JONVAN3LLY
SIN3AT 'ON

S102 ‘0 INNC ONIONT ¥V3A TVISId
4SVI3H01 ONITI0Y
VNIHY 13ANV NVA



WM uaIsIsuoo Buiuun 81e ‘JenemMoy “uctu ey Joy 186pnq uey; 1

U} SE PI0J6) MBU B 18S LBJUCD YOINYD SuF L S el

“Jeak [8asy ay) 10j |jB10AD 198png
sybiy w swres sesuadxe 108.1puj

SASNIdX3 LOIHIANI

‘Kigysiy euesy ul moys abuss Buissoib jseybiy
en0 J96pnq §o pesye u sweo awoour Aiejjpouy

IWODNI AHYTIIONY

‘Yuows

8y} Joj sesusdxe pejedionue uey JayBiy o} pe| ‘sesuadxe Jaqueldag aje 10} feniooe sapun ue yim
Poidnoo ‘suius ey 104 sasuadxe pejs uosess se Uiuow ey Joj 196pnq Jepun ur sweo ewoou| UBAZ

(825'c0€$) 096'85$ 12e'6v2S
(S£1°22271) (092'08€°1) (v2v'86E°1)
8€.'€l9 688299 2ee'ess
L8y 002'0S1L 265'612
ozv'ect 9v8°'20e 090'99¢
£95'2E1L$ G8.°2LES 126'642%
900'8S 00S'est ove'elt
148 e 0¢
1B 10ud 18bpng |enjoy
vioc Q1A G102 QLA Si0Z Q1A
900'91$ (€89'798) (860°09%)
{28£'90¢€) (S90°svE) (008'90%)
100'6S1 Sie'9tL 9p0'p9l
6vE'ce 00L‘02 026'6E
2rs'ss v£8'2L v.L'921
068'S.$ L0118 296'GL$
6EY'ge 005'0S cre'er
S 6 L
102 Ad 1eBpng {enjoy
18qo0 1eqo0 18qo0

81EQ O} 582 pUB YlUOWs JUBLIND By} Y10q J0) SYNSes Bupeie

3NOODNI AN3IAT

8wWodu) JaN

sasuadx3 joalipu)
swoou) Bupeiado 1eyi0
AWOoIY| JueAg 18Yi10
awoaul Arejjouy
W0 JUeAZ 10919
eouepuayy

SJUSAT JO Jaquunp

aiA

awoouj j1aN

sesuadx3 1o81puy)
awoou) Bugesedp seyi0
aWooY] JUBAT JaYIO
awoou; Asejjiouy
3wooU| JUsA] 1088Q
8souepUBRY

SJUBAT JO JaguINp

HINOW

:seak Joud pue jebpnq o paredwod se
do sezurewwns enpayos Buimojjoy ey

v102Z ‘1€ 4380190 Q3AN3 HINOW HOL
S1HOIMHOIH LNIWILVLS IVIONVNIA

VNIHV 13ANV NVA



12W 39 (1w 398pnq Jou J0

Jduaum Ul 10108y SuINIwIIEP ) 0q A1 ISOW {[tm *[[eI9A0 U BuI0D sapan
MOY pue ‘SYIUOW ¢ IX0U BY | “3LP 0} seak sISUIAXD YIim JUALSISUOD
S1{[239A0 pue 3nuaAs uj 133pnq Jo peaye pusi o} sonuNLED 98] 4 SOAN(]

L05'€8 (698'660) (z96°917) 696°61€ (zec'ogs)
- 0
L0S'€8 (698'667) (29€°917) 696°61€ (Z€£'9€5)
- 118'500°9 118°00'9 LT0'810'r $8L'L86'1
- SPO'6TET SP6'6TE'T 9PECL9'L 66591
- 69€°00r 69€'00 ££9'L97 9€L'TEL
- T1L'06 L'06 £LS'TY 6€1'sy
- L98°L50'1 £98°L90°1 [48x(%72 $$8'TEE
- +8S85S 1 +8$865"1 LEV'LLG LP1'18S
- 00L'T11 00L'TH1 WS8L 851
- SES'16T SES'IST TiT'6ot £0€°78
- 66061 660761 TU6'EEl L7109
L05'€8 Tr6'S0L'S 6¥P68L'S 966'LEE Y £ 15" |
059'2C ost'oze 001°EpE 6LL°L9T 12€'sL
£58°09 T6H'S3E'S 6bEOPP'S LIZ'0L0'Y TEL9LE'L
T08'1p THO'PTY'T tP8°54'T 6¥L°TLL' $60°€69
$50°61 0S+'196'C $05'086'C 89K L6T°T LEO'E89
00z’ 001°86¥ 00£'s0S TPLL6E 865°L01
€ L0g 0ls 65¢ 151
FONVIMVA AAd 7Y ] oy 1enpY QLA
1inang TVLIOL

SuAWWo,)

SASNAIXT DONILVHIO
YIAO FINTATH ONILVEALO 1IN

434 FALINIDNI
SISNIIXE JAODY AINTATY LAN
‘dX3 ONLLVHALO VIOl

AvVIHAIAO

SATVS

ID1440 Xog
SADIATAS INIAT
SNO1LVY 340
ONLLINIVIN
IINVNIA
JALLADAXH
SASNAIXT LOAWIANT

ININFAZE ONILLVEIJO IVLOL
FOINTATY YIHLO TVLIOL
ANNFATY INTAT TVIOL

FAINIATS AAVTTIONY
JANIATY INTAT LOANIA

IONVANILLY
SINFAR 'ON

SI0Z ‘0€ ANNC ONIGNT BVIA 1VISId
LSYDTH04 ONITTION
4DV1d SOA 3



suoneIdadxa arep 0) seaf

YA JUISISUOD “13A9MOY "yluow dY) 10§ 123pnq ey saySry wr sures sasuadxa 1991pu|

SISNALXT LOAMIANI

198png papasoxa sease isowr wr Surpuads se [1e1310 138pnq Jo peaye ur swies swoour Kigjpouy

sy jo g3uans ay) uo Yiuow ay) 40§ 198pnq Jo pesye

(820°'795$) (v1'6+9%) (Z££°9€68)
(161 1¢8°1) (9€6°100°T) ($8L°L86°1)
81L°TI $99°01 12144
6LS°6S 2T6°TS L06'09
18129 0Z8°'199 $60°€69
$8€°€8SE 68€°LT9$ LE0'€89§
€678 02.'001 85$°L01
LE1 1€1 151
JEEY TR 193png femay
10T ALA SI0T ALA S10Z ALA
716'98S (F9L°€€8) SES'SPS
(085°9¢€5) (¥8%°005) (1£9°19¢6)
$60'S 9997 €01'9
798'L1 UTIT 8oy
9§ 16T $90'P1T SPH'66T
656'80€$ 8LL°87C% 96L°092$
ris'sy ovy'op vLS Ty
$9 Y 19
Y102 Ad 133png Ry
._0..._900 ._onoﬁo ._3900

18] 01 JBD A pUR YIUOW JUSLIND Y] Y10q 10) SYNS3I Bunessd

JWOOINI AAVTTIONY

UIAD U_u—._ooaw U0 UeY) AI0W SIUIAD
S| B Ul JWED SWOoOY! JUIAD U1

JINODNI INFAT

2woou| 13N

sasuadxg 1vanpug
swoau] Zunesad(y 15y10
JWoduy JudAY IO
dwoduj Lrejjduy
WODU] JUIAT 1AN(]
dduepua)y

SIUAAY JO Jaquiny

aLi

dwosu] jap

sasuadxg 19211pyj
swoou] Sunesado) soyz0
AuI0dU] JUAAY J2YI0)
Swodu] Lejpiouy
2WO0dU] JUdAT 193 (]
douepuayy

SIUSAT JO JaqunyN

H.INOW

.1eaA soud pue 133png 0 pasedwios se
0 sazZLIRWWINS 3jNpayss Buimoyjoy ay |

ST10Z ‘0£ ANNF ONIANT ¥VAA TVISId
SLHOITHOIH INIWALVLS TVIONVNIA

IIDVHd SOA 4a



-6- "Apms aimjongsniyus 1 qnH sy 10y Slsuswasinquutol Jueis pue asuadxs Jo |/ | £§ sapnjouy W

SaION
80 (svT'6s1) §  (c9s091) ¢ %4 (915°18S) $  (vz6‘oLy) $ 3uneiadQ - spesooiq 1aN
661 081612 18L°Z81 98l 9IS ISL 9.6°€€9
0001+ ) L9SEE 6207 S9LE 000°09 T65°C1 JayQysaijddng
9t) 00581 1061 0'¢ 005t SLLET adueInsuj
(€51 L60°8 1956 6'L9 000°0€ 698°L1 UV JO JUsWaInd0ig
(L°8$) 1€8°¢ 892°6 08 000°0¢ L8391 Surdeospuer]
0001+ 876'L - (z29) 090°1¢ 484 $301A19S Sunjnsuo))
(0'001) - 12351 SShi 000°0t 06291 sitedoy afeianag % pooy
61 0ZL6€ 066°8€ 97 000°0p 066°8€ uswWIsSsassy qig
L'v9 vTrol 8¢9 (T9) 000°9S 98°LS S3IAISG |BUOISSDJOI]
- - - 0001 000°SL - uSiedwe) Sunosep
'ty L90°S€ 00L°¢E (re) 956171 | LS9'811 Sljauag/sase
1'81 9L 11 0566 80 000521 856°¢€T1 dAneniul AsisAlQg
- 00005 000°0S - 000°$Z1 000°SZ1 (suodg/gAD) Suneyrey
sasuadxy
8691 $£6°6S 812°C¢ Sy 000°0L1 759791
0001+ w EEILE 0v0°Z L6 000°06 £90°C8 SNOJUB|[SISIA]
0¢l 08T $  8LI‘OC $ (L'0) 00008 $ 68508 § 1s219)u]
mo==o>oy_
By
duey) I€/01-/1/L 1€/01-1/L aduey) 138png (LULE |
adejuaaiog SI0Z Ad PIOZAA aseyuadtag S10Z Ad ¥10Z Ad
de(J-0)-1vd X Jenuuy

S10T ‘0€ dunp Surpuy 183X 10J SPuAL ], feasiq
1e13( spaadoa g jaN
SHUNO0IDY JANBISITIWPY
Luogny BUAIYy/u0nudAu0) Ajuno) judyy-sprdey pusio



Item 4.B.i.b.

VAN ANDEL ARENA

FINANCIAL STATEMENT
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED OCTOBER 31, 2014

PROUD HOME OF THE GRAND RAPIDS GRIFFINS — 2013 CALDER CUP CHAMPIONS

\{caLpEr cup ]/
| CHAMPIONS |

Distribution;

Grand Rapids — KentCounty Convention / Arena Authority
Robert White

Joe Romano

Gary McAneney

John Szudzik

Richard MacKeigan

Chris Machuta

An 5M6 Managed Facllity



VAN ANDEL ARENA
ROLLING FORECAST
FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2015

YTD ROLL TOTAL BUDGET
FYE FYE VARIANCE

NO. EVENTS 20 78 98 100 )
ATTENDANCE 113,240 441,658 554,898 576,000 (21,102)
DIRECT EVENTY INCOME 279,927 895,507 1,175,434 1,126,581 48,853
ANCILLARY INCOME 366,060 892,823 1,258,883 1,234,509 24,374
TOTAL EVENT INCOME 645,987 1,788,330 2,434,317 2,361,090 73,227
TOTAL OTHER INCOME 1,001,814 1,541,053 2,542 867 2,613,125 29,742
TOTAL INCOME 1,647,801 3,329,383 4,977,184 4,874,215 102,969
INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE 75,130 104,351 179,481 179,481 -
FINANCE 69,198 170,208 239,406 239,406 -
MARKETING 82,599 199,246 281,845 281,845 -
OPERATIONS 644,898 1,041,548 1,686,446 1,686,446 -
BOX OFFICE 33,788 114,505 148,203 148,293 -
LUXURY SEATING 19,953 76,281 96,234 96,234 -
SKYWALK ADMIN 10,592 9,368 19,960 19,960 -
OVERHEAD 462,317 1,009,068 1,471,385 1,471,385 -

TOTAL INDIRECT EXP. 1,398,474 2,724,575 4,123,050 4,123,050 -
NET REVENUE ABOVE EXPENSES 249,327 604,808 854,134 751,165 102,969
LESS INCENTIVE FEE - 0 - -
NET REVENUE ABOVE EXPENSES AFTER INCENTIVE 249,327 604,808 751,165 102,969
Comments:

The arena performed at budgeted levels for the month in overall revenue
as the success of the Eric Church concert helped offset higher than
anticipated service expenses.




VAN ANDEL ARENA

FINANCIAL STATEMENT HIGHLIGHTS

FOR MONTH ENDED OCTOBER 31, 2014

The following schedule summarizes operating results for both the current month and Year to Date

as compared to budget and prior year:

MONTH

Number of Events
Attendance

Direct Event Income
Ancillary Income

Other Event Income
Other Operating Income
Indirect Expenses

Net Income

YTD

Number of Events
Attendance

Direct Event Income
Ancillary Income

Other Event Income
Other Operating Income
Indirect Expenses

Net Income

EVENT INCOME

October October October
Actual Budget FY 2014
7 9 5
42,842 50,500 28,439
$15,962 $41,073 $75,890
126,774 72,834 55,542
39,920 20,100 32,349
164,046 146,375 169,007
(406,800) (345,065) (306,782)
($60,098) ($64,683) $16,006
YTD 2015 YTD 2015 YTD 2014
Actual Budget Prior Year
20 24 14
113,240 133,500 58,006
$279,927 $312,785 $132,567
366,060 307,846 129,420
219,592 160,700 47,872
782,222 667,889 613,738
(1.398,474) (1,380,260) (1,227,175)
$249,327 $58,960 ($303,578)

Event income came in under budget for the month as seas
with an under accrual for late September ex

month.

ANCILLARY INCOME

on start expenses for the Griffins, coupled
penses, led to higher than anticipated expenses for the

Ancillary income came in ahead of budget overall as the Eric Church concert set a new record as the
highest grossing single show in Arena history.

INDIRECT EXPENSES

Indirect expenses came in higher than bud
budget overall for the fiscal year.

get for the month, however, are running consistent with




Van Andel Arena
Income Statement
For the Four Months Ending October 31, 2014

Current Month Current Month Cumrent Month Yearto Date  Year to Date Year to Date
Actual Budget Variance Prior Year Actual Budget Variance Prior Year
Event Income
Direct Event Income
Rental Income $98,669 $106,737 (8.068) $110,026 $323,649 $412,159 (88,510) $246,556
Service Revenue 142,584 50,886 91,698 85,638 684,578 346,092 338,486 124,724
Service Expenses (225,291) (79,050) (146,241) (119,774) (728,300) (445,466) (282,834) (238,713)
Total Direct Event income 15,962 78,573 (62,611) 75,890 279,927 312,785 (32,858) 132,567
Ancillary Income
F&B Concession 115,674 86,810 28,764 44,195 304,957 264,675 40,282 112,308
F&B Catering 8,558 3,996 4,562 8,691 25,170 14,445 10,725 10,901
Novelty Sales 1,852 3618 (1,766) 2,656 35,143 28,726 6,417 6,211
Booth Cleaning 644 0 644 0 644 0 644 0
Audio Visual 146 0 146 0 146 0 146 0
Total Ancillary Income 126,774 94,424 32,350 55,542 366,060 307,846 58,214 129,420
Other Event Income
Ticket Rebates(Per Event) 39,920 20,100 19,820 32,349 219,592 150,700 68,892 47,872
Total Other Event Income 39,920 20,100 19,820 32,349 219,592 150,700 68,892 47,872
Total Event Income 182,656 193,097 (10,441) 163,781 865,579 771,331 94,248 309,859
Other Operating Income
Luxury Box Agreements 117,675 101,347 16,328 103,388 570,505 443,553 126,952 387,564
Advertising 42,734 52,083 (9,349) 52,136 189,742 208,336 (18,594) 210,409
Other Income 3,637 4,000 (363) 3,483 21,975 16,000 5,975 15,765
Total Other Operating Income 164,046 157,430 6,616 159,007 782,222 667,889 114,333 613,738
Adjusted Gross Income 346,702 350,527 (3,825) 322,788 1,647,801 1,439,220 208,581 923,597
Operating Expenses
Salaries and Wages 231,826 168,573 63,253 158,868 817,812 674,292 143,520 561,587
Payroli Taxes and Benefits 50,756 49,120 1,636 36,592 217,858 196,480 21,378 123,362
Labor Allocations to Events (96,218) (69,893) (26,325) (67,923) (451,176) (279,572) (171,604) (155,668)
Net Salaries and Benefits 186,364 147,800 38,564 127,537 584,494 591,200 (6,706) 529,281
Contracted Services 18,585 20,928 (2,343) 12,637 75,314 83,712 (8,398) 71,844
General and Administrative 39,414 25,218 14,196 23,698 137,318 100,872 36,446 118,363
Operations 5,357 4,118 1,239 2,519 24,695 16,472 8,223 6,833
Repair and Maintenance 33,148 20,675 12,473 29,367 117,778 82,700 35,078 89,202
Operational Supplies 22,526 15,415 7,111 12,787 77,367 61,660 15,707 62,531
Insurance 10,776 10,727 49 7.647 36,031 42,908 (6,877) 20,887
Utilities 76,316 85,996 (9.680) 76,570 288,220 343,984 (55,764) 272,155
SMG Management Fees 14,314 14,188 126 14,020 57,257 56,752 505 56,079
Total Operating Expenses 406,800 345,065 61,735 306,782 1,398,474 1,380,260 18,214 1,227,175
Net Income(Loss) From Operations {60,098) 5,462 (65,560) 16,006 249,327 58,960 190,367 (303,578)
Other Non-Operating Expenses
Adjusted Net Income(Loss) (60,098) 5,462 (65,560) 16,006 249,327 58,960 190,367 (303,578)




SMG - Van Andel Arena
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Event Summary
For the Four Months Ended October 31, 2014

Events/Days Attendance Total Event Income
Event Type Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget
Family Show 8 7 21,218 22,000 44,718 47,396
Sporting Event 2 10,000 84,900
Concert 6 7 60,369 59,500 697,072 520,261
Team Home Games 4 4 20,133 24,000 53,709 59,684
Other 2 4 11,520 18,000 70,081 59,090
GRAND TOTALS 20 24 113,240 133,500 865,579 771,331
As Percentage of Overall
Family Show 40.00% 29.17% 18.74% 16.48% 5.17% 6.14%
Sporting Event 0.00% 8.33% 0.00% 7.49% 0.00% 11.01%
Concert 30.00% 29.17% 53.31% 44.57% 80.53% 67.45%
Team Home Games 20.00% 16.67% 17.78% 17.98% 6.20% 7.74%
Other 10.00% 16.67% 10.17% 13.48% 8.10% 7.66%



Current Assets
Cash

Account Receivable
Prepaid Expenses

Total Current Assets

Total Assets

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable

Accrued Expenses

Deferred Income

Advanced Ticket Sales & Deposits

Total Current Liabilities

Other Liabilities

Equity

Funds Remitted to CAA
Expenses Paid Direct by CAA
Beginning Balance Equity
Current Year Equity

Total Equity

Total Liabilities and Equity

Van Andel Arena
Balance Sheet
As of October 31, 2014

ASSETS

4,343,128
190,841
75,428

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

153,071
502,299
1,862,970
4,390,534

(1,968,823)
268,595
(848,577)
249,328

$4,609,397

$4,609,397

$6,908,874

($2,299,477)

$4,609,397




SMG - Van Andel Arena
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Summary of Accounts Receivable

As of October 31, 2014
Current - Under 30 Days
Food & Beverage 196,693
Ticketing 73,708
Merchandise -
Permanent Advertising -
DeVos Place (190,378)
Operating 82,473
Over 30 Days 28,345
Over 60 Days -
Over 90 Days

Total Accounts Receivable 190,841



SMG - Van Andel Arena & DeVos Place
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Management Fee Summary
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2015

MANAGEMENT FEE SUMMARY

Arena DeVos Place Total FY 2014
Estimate Estimate Estimate Actual
Net Revenue above Expenses 854,134 (216,362) 637,772 107,686
Benchmark ++ 750,000 750,000
Excess 854,134 (216,362) (112,228) (642,314)

Incentive Fee Calculation (Only if above greater than zero)

Arena DeVos Place Total Total
Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate
Base Fee 171,770 171,770 343,540 336,474
Incentive Fee
Revenue 4,977,184 5,789,449 10,766,633 10,683,672
Benchmark Revenue 5,000,000 4,400,000 9,400,000 9,300,000
Revenue Excess (22,816) 1,389,449 1,366,633 1,383,672
Incentive Fee ** - - - -
Total SMG Management Fee 171,770 171,770 343,540 336,474

** Incentive fee is 25% of the first $500,000 in excess, 30% of remaining capped at base fee amount.

++ If net revenues above expenses exceeds $700,000, SMG is eligible for 75% of the incentive fee.



Item 4.B.i.b.

DE VOS PLACE

FINANCIAL STATEMENT
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED OCTOBER 31,2014

Distribution:

Grand Rapids - KentCounty Convention / Arena Authority
Robert White

Joe Romano

Gary McAneney

John Szudzik

Richard MacKeigan

Chris Machuta

An SMG Managed Facility



DE VOS PLACE
ROLLING FORECAST
FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2015

TOTAL BUDGET
YTD Actual Roli FYE FYE VARIANCE

NO. EVENTS 151 359 510 507 3
ATTENDANCE 107,558 397,742 505,300 498,100 7,200
DIRECT EVENT REVENUE 683,037 2,297,468 2,980,505 2,961,450 19,055
ANCILLARY REVENUE 693,095 1,772,749 2,465,844 2,424,042 41,802
TOTAL EVENT REVENUE 1,376,132 4,070,217 5,446,349 5,385,492 60,857
TOTAL OTHER REVENUE 75,321 267,779 343,100 320,450 22,650
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE 1,451,453 4,337,996 5,789,449 5,705,942 83,507
INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE 60,127 133,972 194,099 194,099 -
FINANCE 82,323 169,212 251,535 251,535 -
MARKETING 34,158 78,542 112,700 112,700 -
OPERATIONS 581,147 977,437 1,558,584 1,558,584 -
EVENT SERVICES 332,555 735312 1,067,867 1,067,867 -
BOX OFFICE 48,139 42,573 90,712 90,712 -
SALES 132,736 267,633 400,369 400,369 -
OVERHEAD 716,599 1,613,346 2,329,945 2,329,945 -

TOTAL OPERATING EXP. 1,987,785 4,018,027 6,005,811 6,005,811 -
NET REVENUE ABOVE EXPENSES (536,332) 319,969 (216,362) (299,869) 83,507
INCENTIVE FEE 0 -
NET OPERATING REVENUE OVER (536,332) 319,969 {216,363) (299,869) 83,507

OPERATING EXPENSES
Comments:

DeVos Place continues to trend ahead of budget in revenue and overall is
consistent with expenses year to date. The next 4-5 months, and how
utilities come in overall, will most likely be the determining factor in whether
or not budget will be met.




DE VOS PLACE

FINANCIAL STATEMENT HIGHLIGHTS
FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2015

The following schedule summarizes o
as compared to budget and prior year:

MONTH

Number of Events
Attendance

Direct Event Income
Ancillary Income

Other Event Income
Other Operating Income
Indirect Expenses

Net Income

YTD

Number of Events
Attendance

Direct Event Income
Ancillary Income

Other Event Income
Other Operating Income
Indirect Expenses

Net Income

EVENT INCOME

Direct event income came in a little ahead of bud
events more than one specific event.

ANCILLARY INCOME

perating results for both the current month and Year to Date

October October October
Actual Budget FY 2014
55 55 65
42,574 40,440 43,514
$260,796 $228,778 $308,959
299,445 214,064 291,546
40,822 21,212 17,862
6,103 2,666 5,095
(561,631) (500,484) (536,550)
$45,535 ($33,764) $86,912
YTD 2015 YTD 2015 YTD 2014
Actual Budget Prior Year
151 131 137
107,558 100,720 82,943
$683,037 $627,389 $583,385
693,095 661,820 621,481
60,907 52,922 59,579
14,414 10,664 12,718
(1,987,785) (2,001,936) (1,841,191)
(8536,332) (8649,141) ($564,028)

get for the month on the strength of multiple

Ancillary income came in ahead of budget overall as spending in most areas exceeded budget.

INDIRECT EXPENSES

Indirect expenses came in higher than budget for the month, however, consistent with

year to date expectations




Event Income

Direct Event Income
Rental Income
Service Revenue
Service Expenses

Total Direct Event Income

Ancillary Income
F&B Concession
F&B Catering
Novelty Sales
Booth Cleaning
Telephone/Long Distance
Electrical Services
Audio Visual
Intemet Services
Equipment Rental

Total Ancililary income

Other Event Income
Ticket Rebates(Per Event)

Total Other Event income

Total Event Income

Other Operating income
Luxury Box Agreements
Other Income

Total Other Operating Income

Adjusted Gross Income

Operating Expenses
Salaries and Wages
Payroli Taxes and Benefits
Labor Allocations to Events

Net Salarles and Benefits

Contracted Services
General and Administrative
Operations

Repair and Maintenance
Operational Supplies
Insurance

Utilities

SMG Management Fees

Total Operating Expenses

Net Income(Loss) From Operations

Other Non-Operating Expenses

Adjusted Net Income(Loss)

DeVos Place
Income Statement
For the Four Months Ending October 31, 2014

Current Month  Current Month CurrentMonth  Yearto Date  Year to Date Year to Date
Actual Budget Variance Prior Year Actual Budget Variance Prior Year

$282,363 $238,160 $44,203 $310,631 $791.263 $672,080 $119,183 $624,987
238,987 210,726 28,261 343,704 526,051 454,597 71,454 484,130
{260,554) (220,108) (40,446) (345,376) (634,277) (499,288) (134,989) (625,732)
260,796 228,778 32,018 308,959 683,037 627,389 55,648 583,385
9,108 8,532 576 7.808 27,878 26,898 980 22,252
116,007 96,874 18,133 91,950 279,179 264,177 156,002 213.130
301 684 (363) 1,044 1,403 2,364 (961) 1,447
37.014 12,574 24,440 26,772 78,022 55,089 22,933 61,628
0 0 0 113 225 0 225 900
63,318 31,864 31,454 76,750 125,748 123,716 2,032 124,152
33,877 38,288 (4,411) 59,736 76,963 116,942 (39,979) 131,526
13,849 7.370 6,479 8.684 45,556 27,945 17,611 30,663
26,971 17,898 9,073 18,689 58,121 44,689 13,432 35,783
299,445 214,064 85,381 291,546 693,095 661,820 31,275 621,481
40,822 21,212 19,610 17,862 60,807 52,922 7,985 59,579
40,822 21,212 19,610 17,862 60,907 52,922 7,985 59,579
601,063 464,054 137,009 618,367 1,437,039 1,342,131 94,908 1,264,445
1,341 1,333 8 1,461 5,364 5,332 32 5,844
4,762 1.333 3,429 3634 9,050 5,332 3,718 6,874
6,103 2,666 3,437 5,095 14,414 10,664 3,750 12,718
607,166 466,720 140,446 623,462 1,451,453 1,352,798 98,658 1,277,163
368,607 269,202 99,405 327,050 932,133 1,076,808 (144,675) 823,478
92,820 78,248 14,572 140,662 287,158 312,992 (25,834) 282,777
(189,975) (148,656) (41,319) (228,578) (427,202) (594,624) 167,422 (399,241)
271,452 198,794 72,658 239,134 792,089 795,176 (3,087) 707,014
34,824 20,718 14,106 41,080 111,294 82,872 28,422 133,842
23,487 28,110 (4,623) 24,509 106,171 112,440 (6,269) 95,783
5,846 9,960 (4,114) 4,802 78,924 39,840 39,084 45363
47,885 41,350 6,535 37,687 198,684 165,400 33,284 148,178
14,568 20,975 (6.407) 27,270 66,139 83,900 (17.761) 59,591
18,821 16,322 2,499 18,633 60,806 65,288 (4.482) 61,686
130,434 150,067 (19,633) 129,405 516,421 600,268 (83,847) 534,399
14,314 14,188 126 14,020 57,257 56,752 505 55,335
561,631 500,484 61,147 536,550 1,987,785 2,001,936 (14,151) 1,841,191
45,635 (33,764) 79,299 86,912 (536,332) {649,141) 112,809 (564,028)
45,535 (33,764) 79,299 86,912 (536,332) (649,141) 112,809 (564,028)

3



SMG DeVos Place
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Year to Date Event Summary Report
For the Four Months ended October 31,2014

Events/Days Attendance Total Event Income
Event Type Actual _ Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget
Convention/Trade Shows 52 41 43,425 39,360 676,799 636,156
Consumer/Gated Shows 5 5 3,954 7,500 35,984 47,615
DeVos Performance Hall 27 23 29,170 27,240 212,410 200,766
Banquets 16 16 10,608 10,400 158,966 161,216
Meetings 39 34 9,923 11,900 270,892 215,798
Other 12 12 10,478 4,320 81,988 80,580
GRAND TOTALS 151 131 107,558 100,720 1,437,039 1,342,131
As Percentage of Overall
Convention/Trade Shows 34.44% 31.30% 40.37% 39.08% 47.10% 47.40%
Consumer/Gated Shows 331% 3.82% 3.68% 7.45% 2.50% 3.55%
Devos Performance Hall 17.88% 17.56% 27.12% 27.05% 14.78% 14.96%
Ballroom Exclusive 10.60% 12.21% 9.86% 10.33% 11.06% 12.01%
Meetings 25.83% 25.95% 9.23% 11.81% 18.85% 16.08%
Other 195% 9.16% 9.74% 4.29% 5.71% 6.00%

~Z



Current Assets
Cash

Account Receivable
Prepaid Expenses

Total Current Assets

Total Assets

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable

Accrued Expenses

Deferred income

Advanced Ticket Sales & Deposits

Total Current Liabilities
Other Liabilities

Equity

Funds Remitted to CAA
Expenses Paid Direct by CAA
Beginning Balance Equity
Current Year Equity

Total Equity

Total Liabilities and Equity

DeVos Place
Balance Sheet
As of October 31, 2014

ASSETS

1,453,047
981,508
9,911

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

67,476
241,202
103,665

1,408,120

$2,444,466

$2,444 466

(202,009)
457,523
904,820

(536,332)

$1,820,464

$624,002

$2,444,466




SMG - DeVos Place

Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Summary of Accounts Receivable
As of October 31, 2014

Current - Under 30 Days
Food & Beverage
Ticketing
Merchandise
Decorating
Audio/Visual
Van Andel Arena
Operating

Over 30 Days

Over 60 Days

Over 90 Days

Total Accounts Receivable

128,537
272,885
486
37,013
34,023
190,378
169,470

116,920

31,796

981,508



SMG - Van Andel Arena & DeVos Place
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Management Fee Summary
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2015

MANAGEMENT FEE SUMMARY

Arena DeVos Place Total FY 2014
Estimate Estimate Estimate Actual
Net Revenue above Expenses 854,134 (216,362) 637,772 107,686
Benchmark ++ 750,000 750,000
Excess 854,134 (216,362) (112,228) (642,314)

Incentive Fee Calculation (Only if above greater than zero)

Arena DeVos Place Total Total
Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate
Base Fee 171,770 171,770 343,540 336,474
Incentive Fee
Revenue 4,977,184 5,789,449 10,766,633 10,683,672
Benchmark Revenue 5,000,000 4,400,000 9,400,000 9,300,000
Revenue Excess (22,816) 1,389,449 1,366,633 1,383,672
Incentive Fee ** - - - -
Total SMG Management Fee 171,770 171,770 343,540 336,474

** Incentive fee is 25% of the first $500,000 in excess, 30% of remaining capped at base fee amount.

++ If net revenues above expenses exceeds $700,000, SMG is eligible for 75% of the incentive fee.



Van Andel Arena, as
Managed by SMG

Special-Purpose Financial Statements as of and for
the Years Ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, and
Independent Auditors’ Report

Item 4.B.i.c.



VAN ANDEL ARENA, AS MANAGED BY SMG

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 1-2

SPECIAL-PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS OF AND FOR THE
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013:

Statements of Assets, Liabilities, and Amount Due Operator
Arising from Activities Managed by SMG 3

Statements of Operating Revenues and Operating Expenses
Arising from Activities Managed by SMG 4

Statements of Changes in Amount Due Operator
Arising from Activities Managed by SMG 5

Statements of Operating Cash Flows
Arising from Activities Managed by SMG 6

Notes to Special-Purpose Financial Statements 7-11



[ ]
De l o Itte Deloitte & Touche LLP
. 38 Commerce SW

Suite 600
Grand Rapids, MI 49503
UsA

Tel: +1 616 336 7900
Fax' +1 616 336 7950
www deloitte. com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Van Andel Arena, as Managed by SMG
Grand Rapids, Michigan

We have audited the accompanying special-purpose financial statements of Van Andel Arena, as
managed by SMG (“SMG-Van Andel Arena”), which comprise the special-purpose statements of assets,
liabilities, and amount due operator arising from activities managed by SMG as of June 30,2014 and
2013, and the special-purpose statements of operating revenues and operating expenses arising from
activities managed by SMG; special-purpose statements of operating cash flows arising from activities
managed by SMG for the years then ended, and the related notes to the special-purpose financial
statements (collectively, the “Special-Purpose Financial Statements™).

Management’s Responsibility for the Special-Purpose Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these Special-Purpose Financial
Statements in accordance with the basis of presentation referred to in Note 2 to the Special-Purpose
Financial Statements; this includes determining that the basis of presentation is an acceptable basis for the
preparation of the Special-Purpose Financial Statements in the circumstances. Management is also
responsible for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of the Special-Purpose Financial Statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error-

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Special-Purpose Financial Statements based on our
audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the Special-Purpose Financial Statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the Special-Purpose Financial Statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Special-Purpose Financial
Statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal
control relevant to SMG-Van Andel Arena’s preparation and fair presentation of the Special-Purpose
Financial Statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of SMG-Van Andel Arena’s internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the Special-Purpose Financial Statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Member of
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited



Opinion

In our opinion, the Special-Purpose Financial Statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the assets, liabilities, and amount due operator of SMG-Van Andel Arena as of J une 30, 2014
and 2013, and its operating revenues, operating expenses, changes in amount due operator, and cash flows
for the years then ended in accordance with the basis of presentation referred to in Note 2 to the Special-
Purpose Financial Statements.

Basis of Presentation

We draw attention to Note 2 of the Special-Purpose Financial Statements, which describes the basis of
accounting. The Special-Purpose Financial Statements are prepared to present the assets, liabilities,
amount due operator, operating revenues, operating expenses, and operating cash flows of SMG-Van
Andel Arena arising from the management activities of SMG pursuant to the basis of presentation
referred to in Note 2 to the Special-Purpose Financial Statements, which is a basis of accounting other
than accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and are not intended to be
a complete presentation of SMG-Van Andel Arena assets and liabilities or its results of operations and
cash flows. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Restriction on Use
Our report is intended solely for the information and use of the management of SMG-Van Andel Arena

and officials of the Grand Rapids — Kent County Convention/ Arena Authority and is not intended to be
and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

dlitoitty ¢ Trareha 0f

September 30, 2014



VAN ANDEL ARENA, AS MANAGED BY SMG

SPECIAL-PURPOSE STATEMENTS OF ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND AMOUNT DUE OPERATOR

ARISING FROM ACTIVITIES MANAGED BY SMG
AS OF JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents —
Operating
Ticket sales escrow

Accounts receivable — net of allowance of $66,100 and $56,200

in 2014 and 2013, respectively
Prepaid expenses

TOTAL

LIABILITIES AND AMOUNT DUE OPERATOR
CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses

Advance ticket sales

Advance deposits
Deferred income

Total current liabilities

AMOUNT DUE (FROM) TO OPERATOR

TOTAL

See notes to special-purpose financial statements.

2014 2013
$1,106,476 $2,117,606
4,968,040 307,410
796,485 1,441,902
78,051 37,544
$6,949,052 $3,904,462
$ 836,038 $ 629,096
397,050 645,711
4,968,040 307,410
43,325 33,425
1,553,175 1,456,505
7,797,628 3,072,147
_(848,576) 832,315
$6,949,052 $3,904,462




VAN ANDEL ARENA, AS MANAGED BY SMG

SPECIAL-PURPOSE STATEMENTS OF OPERATING REVENUES AND OPERATING EXPENSES

ARISING FROM ACTIVITIES MANAGED BY SMG
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

OPERATING REVENUES:
Events

Net ancillary revenues:
Food and beverage
Novelties
Other

Total net ancillary revenues
Total events and net ancillary revenues

Other revenues:
Premium seating
Advertising income
Other — including interest income of $2,588 and $7.117
in 2014 and 2013, respectively

Total other revenues
Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Payroll and related
Repairs and maintenance
Supplies
Utilities
General and administrative

Total operating activities

EXCESS OF OPERATING REVENUES OVER OPERATING

EXPENSES — Before incentive management fee

INCENTIVE MANAGEMENT FEE

EXCESS OF OPERATING REVENUES OVER OPERATING

EXPENSES

See notes to special-purpose financial statements.

2014 2013
$1,039,981 $1,167,725
1,127,247 1,471,677
64,389 120,848
802 1,084
1,192,438 1,593,609
2,232,419 2,761,334
1,393,469 1,479,700
658,547 695,200
438,778 602,730
2,490,794 2,777,630
4,723,213 3,538,964
1,698,299 1,597,783
419,516 217,499
193,597 224,328
1,012,537 917,421
952,333 840,924
4,276,282 3,797,955
446,931 1,741,009
96,019
$ 446,931 $1,644,990




VAN ANDEL ARENA, AS MANAGED BY SMG

SPECIAL-PURPOSE STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN AMOUNT DUE OPERATOR
ARISING FROM ACTIVITIES MANAGED BY SMG
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

2014 2013
AMOUNT DUE OPERATOR — Beginning of year $ 832315 $ 384,166
EXCESS OF OPERATING REVENUES OVER OPERATING
EXPENSES 446,931 1,644,990
CONTRIBUTIONS RECEIVED FROM OPERATOR 1,057,119 853,159
AMOUNTS PAID TO OPERATOR (3,184,941)  (2,050,000)
AMOUNT DUE (FROM) TO OPERATOR — End of year $ (848,576) § 832,315

See notes to special-purpose financial statements.



VAN ANDEL ARENA, AS MANAGED BY SMG

SPECIAL-PURPOSE STATEMENTS OF OPERATING CASH FLOWS

ARISING FROM ACTIVITIES MANAGED BY SMG
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Excess of operating revenues over operating expenses
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Advanced deposits
Deferred income

Net cash provided by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Contributions received from Operator
Amounts paid to Operator

Net cash used in financing activities

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN OPERATING CASH
OPERATING CASH — Beginning of year

OPERATING CASH — End of year

See notes to special-purpose financial statements.

2014 2013
$ 446,931 $ 1,644,990
645,417 2,547
(40,507) 7,184
206,942 (718,370)
(248,661) 52,149
9,900 13,425
96,670 228,201
1,116,692 1,230,126
1,057,119 853,159
(3,184,941)  (2,050,000)
(2,127,822) (1,196,841)
(1,011,130) 33,285
2,117,606 2,084,321
$ 1,106,476 $ 2,117,606




VAN ANDEL ARENA, AS MANAGED BY SMG

NOTES TO SPECIAL-PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

1.

OPERATIONS

Van Andel Arena (the “Arena”) provides space for family shows, concerts, sporting events, meetings,
and other performances. The Arena is operated by the Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena
Authority (the “Operator”).

The Operator has entered into a Management Agreement with SMG to manage the operations of the
Arena. The activities of the Arena that are managed by SMG are herein referred to as “SMG-Van Andel
Arena.”

The Operator from time to time provides funding to SMG-Van Andel Arena to pay the obligations of the
Arena when due. The Operator is contractually obligated to fund all liabilities and expenses of the
Arena,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation — The accompanying special-purpose financial statements have been prepared to
present the assets, liabilities, amount due operator, operating revenues, operating expenses, and
operating cash flows of the Arena arising from the management activities of SMG and are not intended
to be a complete presentation of the Arena’s financial position, results of operations, and operating cash
flows. Such special-purpose financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting
and include transactions managed by SMG in accordance with the Management Agreement, measured in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Accordingly,
the special-purpose financial statements do not include property and equipment, noncontractual repair
expenditures, and related fund equity associated with the Arena or certain other activities of the Operator
related to the Arena that are not part of the activities managed by SMG. Payroll and related expenses are
for employees hired by SMG to manage the Arena under the Management Agreement. These employees
are not employees of the Operator.

Use of Estimates — Estimates and assumptions are required to be used by management in the
preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
operating revenues and operating expenses during the reporting period. Management believes its
estimates to be reasonable; however, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents — Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and highly liquid
investments with an original maturity of three months or less at the date of purchase.

Advance Ticket Sales — SMG-Van Andel Arena incurs a liability for cash received from ticket sales in
advance of an event; a corresponding amount is held in a separate escrow account. Operating revenues
are not recognized until the related event occurs.



Deferred Income — Deferred income is comprised primarily of advanced billings and collections for
luxury boxes and advertising contracts, which are recognized as revenues on a straight-line basis over
the lives of the related contract. Also included are ticket rebates received from the ticket agent prior to
an event, which are not recognized as revenue until the event occurs.

Event Revenues — SMG-Van Andel Arena records event revenue upon the completion of the event.
Accordingly, amounts received for advance ticket sales or deposits by promoters are recorded as
liabilities until that time. Costs incurred prior to an event are recorded as prepaid expenses and charged
to expense upon completion of the event.

Ancillary Revenues — All concession and merchandise revenues are recognized when earned.
Ancillary revenues are a contractually determined percentage of gross receipts collected by the vendor
for each event.

Other Operating Revenues — Other operating revenues include revenues associated with luxury
seating, advertising, ticket rebates, interest income, and other miscellaneous items.

Noncontractual Repairs — From time to time, SMG-Van Andel Arena incurs costs funded by the
Operator’s capital projects budget, which is separate and distinct from the operating funds provided by
the Operator to the Arena. The Operator ultimately decides which expenses will be capitalized or
expensed. These costs are excluded from operating expenses in the accompanying special-purpose
statements.

MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT AND FEES

SMG and the Operator have a Management Agreement (“the Agreement”), that has an effective date of
July 1, 2011, and expired on June 30, 2014, with two 2-year renewal periods extending through 2018.
During the current year the first 2-year renewal period was accepted extending the contract until

June 30, 2016. The Agreement provides for both an annual base and incentive management fee. The
annual base management fee is $162,500 for the first year of the agreement and is adjusted upward
annually by the percentage change in the Consumer Price Index (not to exceed 3% in any one year). A
decrease in the Consumer Price Index will not have an effect on the management fee.



The incentive fee is based on the combined results of operations of the Arena and DeVos Place, as
managed by SMG (“SMG-DeVos Place™), compared to a combined operating revenue benchmark with
SMG-DeVos Place of $9,100,000, which escalates by $100,000 annually for the remainder of the term,
as defined in the Agreement. The maximum incentive to be paid in any fiscal year is equal to 100% of
the base management fee. To qualify for the incentive fee, combined operating revenues of SMG-Van
Andel Arena and SMG-DeVos Place must exceed combined operating expenses by an established
benchmark, as follows:

2014 2013

Excess of operating revenue over operating expenses — as

defined — SMG-Van Andel Arena $ 446,931 $1,741,009
(Deficiency) excess of operating revenue over operating

expenses — as defined — SMG-DeVos Place (339,245) 78,035
Total excess of operating revenue over operating expenses $ 107,686 $1,819,044
Incentive benchmark $ 700,000 $ 700,000
Benchmark exceeded? No Yes

In the event the combined operations of SMG-Van Andel Arena and SMG-DeVos Place exceed the
established operating revenue benchmark, and the operating revenues exceed operating expenses by the
benchmark discussed above, the incentive fee is determined based on the below calculation. The amount
of the incentive fee paid based on the calculation below is determined by the amount by which combined
operating revenues exceed combined operating expense in accordance with the threshold levels set forth
below:

Percentage of Amount by Which Operating Revenues Incentive Fee
Exceed Operating Expenses Payable to SMG
$700,000 or more and less than $750,000 75 %
$750,000 or more 100



The below calculation is only performed when combined operating revenues of SMG-Van Andel Arena
and SMG-DeVos Place exceed combined operating expenses by the established benchmark. A schedule
of the base and incentive management fees for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, is as follows:

2014 2013
Base management fee — included in general and
administrative expense (A) $168,237 $ 165,263
Incentive fee calculation:
Total operating revenues — SMG-Van Andel Arena $ - $ 5,538,964
Total operating revenues — SMG-DeVos Place 5,860,533
Total operating revenues - 11,399,497
Revenue benchmark — SMG-Van Andel Arena 4,900,000
Revenue benchmark — SMG-DeVos Place 4,300,000
Total revenue benchmark - 9,200,000
Revenues in excess of revenue benchmark $ - $ 2,199,497
Computation of incentive fee resulting from revenues in
excess of revenue benchmark:
25% of the first $500,000, collectively $ - $ 125,000
30% of the excess of $500,000, collectively up to base fee 205,525
Total incentive fee - 330,525
Percent payable % 100 %
Total incentive fee payable $ - $ 330,525
Incentive fee allocated to SMG-Van Andel Arena (B) $ - $ 96,019
Incentive fee allocated to SMG-DeVos Place 234,506
Total incentive fee $ - $ 330,525
Total management fees — SMG-Van Andel Arena (A +B) $168,237 $ 261,282

The incentive fee shall be allocated between facilities by the percentage of each facilities contribution to
the excess revenue above benchmark. The base fee is contingent upon the Operator maintaining the
SMG-Van Andel Arena concessions agreement with SMG-Food & Beverage, LLC. If that agreement
were to be terminated, the base management fee would increase $25,000 for each managed facility,
adjusted annually by the percentage change in the Consumer Price Index from the base year.

RETIREMENT PLAN
Employees at SMG-Van Andel Arena may elect to participate in the SMG Retirement and Savings Plan,

a 401(k) defined contribution plan covering SMG employees who have completed one year of
employment and 1,000 hours of service. SMG-Van Andel Arena makes matching contributions equal to

-10-



67% of each participant’s contribution up to a maximum of 5% of the participant’s eligible
compensation. Discretionary contributions may also be made on a monthly basis for active participants.
SMG-Van Andel Arena made $10,167 and $8.931 in matching contributions for the years ended

June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

OTHER RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the operations of SMG-Van Andel Arena, SMG personnel also manage the operations of
SMG-DeVos Place. The two facilities share certain expenses, such as payroll, employee fringe benefits,
and insurance, resulting in frequent billings and payments between the two facilities. The two facilities
also share a box office, resulting in frequent billings and payments between the two facilities for ticket
sales. Accounts payable include $309,779 and $54,667 due to SMG-DeVos Place as of June 30,2014
and 2013, respectively.

On July 1, 2006, the Operator entered into a concessions agreement for the Arena with SMG-Food &
Beverage, LLC a related party to SMG. Accounts receivable include $60,311 and $243,820 from
SMG-Food & Beverage, LLC as of June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

CONTINGENCIES

The Arena is exposed to a number of asserted and unasserted potential claims encountered in the normal
course of business. In the opinion of management, the resolution of these matters will not have a
material effect on SMG-Van Andel Arena’s financial position due to insurance coverage. As such, no
provision for loss has been made in the accompanying special-purpose financial statements.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Events or transactions occurring after the balance sheet date have been evaluated through September 30,
2014, the date the special-purpose financial statements were available to be issued. The special-purpose
financial statements and the notes thereto do not reflect events or transactions after this date.

* %k Kk %k ok %k

5 I =2



DeVos Place, as
Managed by SMG

Special-Purpose Financial Statements as of and
for the Years Ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, and
Independent Auditors’ Report

Item 4.B.i.c.



DEVOS PLACE, AS MANAGED BY SMG

TABLE OF CONTENTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

SPECIAL-PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS OF AND FOR THE
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013:

Statements of Assets, Liabilities, and Amount Due Operator
Arising from Activities Managed by SMG

Statements of Operating Revenues and Operating Expenses
Arising from Activities Managed by SMG

Statements of Changes in Amount Due Operator
Arising from Activities Managed by SMG

Statements of Operating Cash Flows
Arising from Activities Managed by SMG

Notes to Special-Purpose Financial Statements

Page

7-11



-
Deloitte Delite 8 Toucre 117
¢ 38 Commerce SW

Suite 600
Grand Rapids, Mi 49503
USA

Tel. +1 616 336 7900
Fax' +1 616 336 7950
www.deloitte.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

DeVos Place, as Managed by SMG
Grand Rapids, Michigan

We have audited the accompanying special-purpose financial statements of DeVos Place, as managed by
SMG (“SMG-DeVos Place™), which comprise the special-purpose statements of assets, liabilities, and
amount due operator arising from activities managed by SMG as of June 30, 2014 and 2013, and the
special-purpose statements of operating revenues and operating expenses arising from activities managed
by SMG; special-purpose statements of changes in amount due operator arising from activities managed
by SMG; and special-purpose statements of operating cash flows arising from activities managed by
SMG for the years then ended, and the related notes to the special-purpose financial statements
(collectively, the “Special-Purpose Financial Statements”).

Management’s Responsibility for the Special-Purpose Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these Special-Purpose Financial
Statements in accordance with the basis of presentation referred to in Note 2 to the Special-Purpose
Financial Statements; this includes determining that the basis of presentation is an acceptable basis for the
preparation of the Special-Purpose Financial Statements in the circumstances. Management is also
responsible for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of the Special-Purpose Financial Statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Special-Purpose Financial Statements based on our
audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the Special-Purpose Financial Statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the Special-Purpose Financial Statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Special-Purpose Financial
Statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal
control relevant to SMG-DeVos Place’s preparation and fair presentation of the Special-Purpose Financial
Statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of SMG-DeVos Place’s internal control.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the Special-Purpose Financial Statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Member of
Delortte Touche Tohmatsu Limited



Opinion

In our opinion, the Special-Purpose Financial Statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the assets, liabilities, and amount due operator of SMG-DeVos Place as of June 30,2014 and
2013, and its operating revenues, operating expenses, changes in amount due operator, and operating cash
flows for the years then ended in accordance with the basis of presentation referred to in Note 2 to the
Special-Purpose Financial Statements.

Basis of Presentation

We draw attention to Note 2 of the Special-Purpose Financial Statements, which describes the basis of
accounting. The Special-Purpose Financial Statements are prepared to present the assets, liabilities,
amount due operator, operating revenues, operating expenses, and operating cash flows of SMG-DeVos
Place arising from the management activities of SMG, pursuant to the basis of presentation referred to in
Note 2 to the Special-Purpose Financial Statements, which is a basis of accounting other than accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and are not intended to be a complete
presentation of SMG-DeVos Place assets and liabilities or its results of operations and cash flows. Our
opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Restriction on Use
Our report is intended solely for the information and use of the management of SMG-DeVos Place and

officials of the Grand Rapids — Kent County Convention/Arena Authority and is not intended to be and
should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Aitoitts § Toocke wf

September 30, 2014



DEVOS PLACE, AS MANAGED BY SMG

SPECIAL-PURPOSE STATEMENTS OF ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND AMOUNT
DUE OPERATOR ARISING FROM ACTIVITIES MANAGED BY SMG
AS OF JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

2014 2013
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents:
Operating $ 543,186 $1,760,646
Ticket sales escrow 312,336 156,423
Accounts receivable — net of allowances of $86,200 and $95,700
in 2014 and 2013, respectively. 1,170,717 926,856
Prepaid expenses 119,370 55,350
TOTAL $2,145,609 $2,899,275
LIABILITIES AND AMOUNT DUE OPERATOR
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable $ 235,409 $ 266,381
Accrued expenses 272,055 558,287
Advance ticket sales 312,336 156,423
Advance deposits 351,904 298,383
Deferred income 69,086 58,977
Total current liabilities 1,240,790 1,338,451
AMOUNT DUE OPERATOR 904,819 1,560,824
TOTAL $2,145,609 $2,899,275

See notes to special-purpose financial statements.



DEVOS PLACE, AS MANAGED BY SMG

SPECIAL-PURPOSE STATEMENTS OF OPERATING REVENUES AND OPERATING
EXPENSES ARISING FROM ACTIVITIES MANAGED BY SMG
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

2014 2013
OPERATING REVENUES:
Events $ 3,029,153 $ 3,043,972
Net ancillary revenues:
Food and beverage 1,077,527 1,047,580
Decorating 315,102 297,438
Electrical 440,750 484,133
Equipment rental 634,222 570,660
Other 114,834 123,397
Total net ancillary revenues 2,582,435 2,523,208
Total events and net ancillary revenues 5,611,588 5,567,180
Other — including interest income of $7 and $95
in 2014 and 2013, respectively 348,871 293,353
Total operating revenues 5,960,459 5,860,533
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Payroll and related 2,359,110 2,235,661
Repairs and maintenance 487,020 462,862
Supplies 215,949 295,812
Utilities 2,046,158 1,617,150
General and administrative 1,191,467 1,171,013
Total operating expenses 6,299,704 5,782,498
(DEFICIENCY) EXCESS OF OPERATING REVENUES OVER
OPERATING EXPENSES BEFORE INCENTIVE MANAGEMENT FEE (339,245) 78,035
INCENTIVE MANAGEMENT FEE - 234,506
DEFICIENCY OF OPERATING REVENUES OVER
OPERATING EXPENSES $ (339,245) § (156,471)

See notes to special-purpose financial statements.



DEVOS PLACE, AS MANAGED BY SMG

SPECIAL-PURPOSE STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN AMOUNT DUE
OPERATOR ARISING FROM ACTIVITIES MANAGED BY SMG

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

AMOUNT DUE OPERATOR — Beginning of year

DEFICIENCY OF OPERATING REVENUES OVER

OPERATING EXPENSES

CONTRIBUTIONS RECEIVED FROM OPERATOR

AMOUNTS PAID TO OPERATOR

AMOUNT DUE OPERATOR — End of year

See notes to special-purpose financial statements.

2014 2013
$1,560,824  $1,098,253
(339,245) (156,471)
2,125,313 1,519,042
(2,442,073) (900,000)
$ 904,819  $1,560,824




DAVOS PLACE, AS MANAGED BY SMG

SPECIAL-PURPOSE STATEMENTS OF OPERATING CASH FLOWS
ARISING FROM ACTIVITIES MANAGED BY SMG
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Deficiency of operating revenues over operating expenses
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable

Prepaid expenses

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses and deferred income
Advance deposits

Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Contributions received from operator
Amounts paid to operator
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN OPERATING CASH
OPERATING CASH — Beginning of year

OPERATING CASH — End of year

See notes to special-purpose financial statements.

2014

$ (339,245)

2013

$ (156,471)

(243,861) 415,467
(64,020) 24,274
(30,972) 137,169

(276,123) 300,213

53,521 (9,244)

(900,700) 711,408

2,125,313 1,519,042
(2,442,073) (900,000)
(316,760) 619,042
(1,217,460) 1,330,450

1,760,646 430,196

$ 543,186  $1,760,646




DEVOS PLACE, AS MANAGED BY SMG

NOTES TO SPECIAL-PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

1. OPERATIONS

DeVos Place provides space for conventions, trade shows, concerts, meetings, banquets, and other
performances. DeVos Place is operated by the Grand Rapids — Kent County Convention/Arena
Authority (the “Operator™).

The Operator has entered into a Management Agreement with SMG to manage the operations of DeVos
Place. The activities of DeVos Place that are managed by SMG are referred to herein as “SMG-DeVos
Place.”

The Operator, from time to time, provides funding to SMG-DeVos Place to pay the obligations of
DeVos Place when due. The Operator is contractually obligated to fund all liabilities and expenses of
DeVos Place.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation — The accompanying special-purpose financial statements were prepared to
present the assets, liabilities, amount due operator, operating revenues, operating expenses, and
operating cash flows of DeVos Place arising from the management activities of SMG and are not
intended to be a complete presentation of DeVos Place’s financial position, results of operations, and
operating cash flows. Such special-purpose financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis
of accounting and include transactions managed by SMG in accordance with the Management
Agreement, measured in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America. Accordingly, the special-purpose financial statements do not include property and
equipment, noncontractual repair expenditures, and related-fund equity associated with DeVos Place or
certain other activities of the Operator related to DeVos Place that are not part of the activities managed
by SMG. Payroll and related expenses are for employees hired by SMG to manage DeVos Place under
the Management Agreement. These employees are not employees of the Operator.

Use of Estimates — Estimates and assumptions are required to be used by management in the
preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, and disclosures of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
operating revenues and operating expenses during the reporting period. Management believes its
estimates to be reasonable; however, actual resuits could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents — Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and highly liquid
investments with an original maturity of three months or less at the date of purchase.

Advance Ticket Sales — SMG-DeVos Place incurs a liability for all cash received from ticket sales in
advance of an event; a corresponding amount is held in a separate escrow account. Revenues are not
recognized until the related event occurs.

Deferred Income — Deferred income is comprised primarily of advanced billings, which are
recognized as revenues on a straight-line basis over the lives of the related contract,



Event Revenues — SMG-DeVos Place records event revenue upon the completion of the event.
Accordingly, amounts received for advance ticket sales or deposits by promoters are recorded as
liabilities until that time. Costs incurred prior to an event are recorded as prepaid expenses and charged
to expense upon completion of the event.

Ancillary Revenues — All concession and catering, decorating, electrical, and audiovisual revenues are
recognized when earned. Ancillary revenues are a contractually determined percentage of gross receipts
collected by the vendor for each event.

Other Operating Revenues — Other operating revenues are comprised of interest income, nonevent
equipment rental income, ticket rebates, and other miscellaneous items.

Noncontractual Repairs — From time to time, SMG-DeVos Place incurs costs funded by the
Operator’s capital projects budget, which is separate and distinct from the operating funds provided by
the Operator to DeVos Place. The Operator ultimately decides which expenses will be capitalized or
expensed. These costs are excluded from operating expenses in the accompanying special-purpose
statements of operating revenues and operating expenses.

MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT AND FEES

SMG and the Operator have a Management Agreement (the “Agreement”) that has an effective date of
July 1, 2011, and expires on June 30, 2014, with two two-year renewal periods extending through 2018.
During the current year, the first two-year renewal period was accepted extending the contract until
June 30, 2016. The Agreement provides for both an annual base and incentive management fee. The
annual base management fee is $162,500 for the first year of the agreement and is adjusted upward
annually by the percentage change in the Consumer Price Index (not to exceed 3% in any one year). A
decrease in the Consumer Price Index will not have an effect on the management fee.



The incentive fee is based on the combined results of operations of DeVos Place and Van Andel Arena,
as managed by SMG (“SMG-Van Andel Arena”), compared to a combined operating revenue
benchmark with SMG-Arena of $9,100,000, which escalates by $100,000 annually for the remainder of
the term, as defined in the Agreement. The maximum incentive to be paid in any fiscal year is equal to
100% of the base management fee. To qualify for the incentive fee, combined operating revenues of
SMG-Arena and SMG-DeVos Place must exceed combined operating expenses by an established
benchmark, as follows:

2014 2013
Excess of operating revenue over operating expenses — as
defined — SMG-Van Andel Arena $ 446,931 $1,741,009
(Deficiency) excess of operating revenue over operating
expenses — as defined — SMG-DeVos Place (339,245) 78,035
Total excess of operating revenue over
operating expenses $ 107,686 $1,819,044
Incentive benchmark $ 700,000 $ 700,000
Benchmark exceeded? No Yes

In the event the combined operations of SMG-Arena and SMG-DeVos Place exceed the established
operating revenue benchmark, and the operating revenues exceed operating expenses by the benchmark
discussed above, the incentive fee is determined based on the below calculation. The amount of the
incentive fee paid based on the calculation below is determined by the amount by which combined
operating revenues exceed combined operating expense in accordance with the threshold levels set forth
below:

Amount By Which Operating Revenues Percentage of Incentive
Exceed Operating Expenses Fee Payable to SMG
$700,000 or more and less than $750,000 75 %
$750,000 or more 100



The below calculation is only performed when combined operating revenues of Van Andel Arena and
SMG-DeVos Place exceed combined operating expenses by the established benchmark. A schedule of
the base and incentive management fees for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, is as follows:

2014 2013
Base management fee, included in general and
administrative expense (A) $168,237 $ 165,263
Incentive fee:
Total operating revenues — SMG-Van Arena 5,538,964
Total operating revenues — SMG-DeVos Place 5,860,533
Total operating revenues - 11,399,497
Revenue benchmark — SMG-Van Arena 4,900,000
Revenue benchmark — SMG-DeVos Place 4,300,000
Total revenue benchmark - 9,200,000
Revenues in excess of revenue benchmark $ - $ 2,199,497
Computation of incentive fee resulting from revenues in
excess of revenue benchmark:
25% of the first $500,000, collectively $ - $ 125,000
30% of the excess of $500,000, collectively up to base fee 205,525
Total incentive fee - 330,525
Percent payable - % 100 %
Total incentive fee payable R $ 330,525
Incentive fee allocated to SMG-Van Arena $ - $ 96,019
Incentive fee allocated to SMG-DeVos Place (B) 234,506
Total incentive fee - 330,525
Total management fees — SMG-DeVos Place (A + B) $168,237 $ 399,769

The incentive fee shall be allocated between facilities by the percentage of each facilities contribution to
the excess revenue above benchmark. The base fee is contingent upon the Operator maintaining the
SMG-Van Andel Arena concessions agreement with SMG — Food and Beverage LLC. If that
agreement were to be terminated, the base management fee would increase $25,000 for each managed
facility, adjusted annually by the percentage change in the Consumer Price Index from the base year.

-10-



RETIREMENT PLAN

Employees at SMG-DeVos Place may elect to participate in the SMG Retirement and Savings Plan, a
401(k) defined contribution plan covering SMG employees who have completed one year of
employment and 1,000 hours of service. SMG-DeVos Place makes matching contributions equal to 67%
of each participant’s contribution up to a maximum of 5% of the employee’s eligible compensation.
Discretionary contributions may also be made on a monthly basis for active participants. SMG-DeVos
Place made $21,335 and $21,138 in matching contributions for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013,
respectively.

OTHER RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the operations of SMG-DeVos Place, SMG personnel also manage the operations of
SMG-Van Andel Arena. The two facilities share certain expenses, such as payroll, employee fringe
benefits, and insurance, resulting in frequent billings and payments between the two facilities. The two
facilities also share a box office, resulting in frequent billings and payments between the two facilities
for ticket sales. Accounts receivable include $309,779 and $54,667 due from the SMG-Arena as of
June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

CONTINGENCIES

DeVos Place is exposed to a number of asserted and unasserted potential claims encountered in the
normal course of business. In the opinion of management, the resolution of these matters will not have a
material effect on SMG-DeVos Place’s financial position due to insurance coverage. As such, no
provision for loss has been made in the accompanying special-purpose financial statements,

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Events or transactions occurring after the balance sheet date have been evaluated through September 30,
2014, the date the special-purpose financial statements were available to be issued. The special-purpose
financial statements and the notes thereto do not reflect events or transactions after this date.

* % k ok ok ¥



Deloitte. st e

38 Commerce SW

Suite 600

Grand Rapids, Ml 49503
usa

Tel. +1 616 336 7900
Fax +t 616 336 7950
www.deloitte.com

September 30, 2014

To the Finance Commiittee of

Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
303 Monroe Avenue NW

Grand Rapids, MI 49503

Dear Members of the Finance Committee:

We have performed an audit of the special-purpose financial statements of Van Andel Arena, as managed
by SMG, and DeVos Place, as managed by SMG (collectively, the “Van Andel Arena and DeVos Place”)
as of and for the year ended June 30, 2014, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America (“generally accepted auditing standards™) and have issued our report thereon
dated September 30, 2014,

We have prepared the following comments to assist you in fulfilling your obligation to oversee the
financial reporting and disclosure process for which management of the Van Andel Arena and DeVos
Place is responsible.

Our Responsibility under Generally Accepted Auditing Standards

Our responsibility under generally accepted auditing standards has been described in our engagement
letter dated August 11, 2014, a copy of which has been provided to you. As described in that letter, the
objective of a financial statement audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards is to express an opinion on the fairness of the presentation of the Van Andel Arena and DeVos
Place’s special-purpose financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2014, in conformity with the
basis of accounting described in Note 2 to the special-purpose financial statements (“special-purpose
accounting basis”), in all material respects. Our responsibilities under generally accepted auditing
standards include forming and expressing an opinion about whether the special-purpose financial
statements that have been prepared by management with the oversight of the Finance Committee of the
Kent County Convention/Arena Authority (the “Finance Committee™) are presented fairly, in all material
respects, in conformity with special-purpose accounting basis. The audit of the special-purpose financial
statements does not relieve management or the Finance Committee of its responsibilities.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the special-purpose financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the special-purpose financial statements, whether
caused by fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we considered internal control over financial
reporting relevant to the Van Andel Arena and DeVos Place’s preparation and fair presentation of the
special-purpose financial statements in order to design audit procedures that were appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Van Andel
Arena and DeVos Place’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Van Andel Arena and DeVos Place’s internal control over financial

Member of
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Umited



reporting. Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was not designed to identify all
deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that might be significant deficiencies or material
weaknesses.

Accounting Estimates

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the special-purpose financial statements prepared by
management and are based on management’s current judgments. Those judgments are ordinarily based on
knowledge and experience about past and current events and on assumptions about future events.
Significant accounting estimates reflected in the Van Andel Arena and DeVos Place’s 2014 special-
purpose financial statements include the allowance for doubtful accounts. During the year ended June 30,
2014, we are not aware of any significant changes in accounting estimates or in management’s judgments
relating to such estimates.

Uncorrected Misstatements

Our audit of the special-purpose financial statements was designed to obtain reasonable, rather than
absolute, assurance about whether the special-purpose financial statements are free of material
misstatement, whether caused by error or fraud. There were no uncorrected misstatements or disclosure
items passed identified during our audit.

Significant Accounting Policies

The Van Andel Arena and DeVos Place’s significant accounting policies are set forth in Note 2 to the
Van Andel Arena and DeVos Place’s 2014 special-purpose financial statements. During the year ended
June 30, 2014, there were no significant changes in previously adopted accounting policies or their
application.

Management’s Representations

We have made specific inquiries of the Van Andel Arena and DeVos Place’s management about the
representations embodied in the special-purpose financial statements. Additionally, we have requested
that management provide to us the written representations the Van Andel Arena and DeVos Place is
required to provide to its independent auditors under generally accepted auditing standards. We have
attached to this letter, as Appendix A and Appendix B, a copy of the representation letters we obtained
from management.

Other Findings or Issues

During the current year audit, as part of our Van Andel Arena accounts receivable testing, we identified a
prior year misstatement in which a balance was incorrectly recorded as a receivable as opposed to being
correctly expensed when incurred. An entry was recorded by management in the current year Van Andel
Arena financial statements to correct for such prior year misstatement.

Control-Related Matters

We have identified, and included in Appendix C, certain matters involving the Van Andel Arena’s
internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be a significant deficiency under standards
established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants.



The definitions of a deficiency, a significant deficiency, and a material weakness are also set forth in
Appendix C.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the Finance Committee, and
others within the organization and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than
these specified parties.

Yours truly,

itaitts ¢ Troche wf

cc: The Management of Van Andel Arena and DeVos Place

® Appendix A: Van Andel Arena Representations from Management
¢ Appendix B: DeVos Place Representations from Management
* Appendix C: Matters Related to Internal Control over Financial Reporting.



Cunvention
Arena

Authority

ARENA

Yan Andel Arenae

GRAND RAM

e APPENDIX A
CONVEMIION / ARENA AUTHORIIY
ETERIA eyt DR 4] e MO N 8 a0 Ly A Hetq

September 30, 2014

Deloitte & Touche LLP
Suite 600

38 Commerce SW
Grand Rapids, MI 49503

We are providing this letter in connection with your audits of the Van Andel Arena special-
purpose statements of assets, liabilities, and amount due Operator arising from the activities
managed by SMG ("SMG - Van Andel Arena") as of June 30, 2014 and 2013 and the related
special-purpose financial statements of operating revenues and operating expenses arising from
activities managed by SMG, changes in amount due operator arising from activities managed by
SMG and operating cash flows arising from activities managed by SMG for the years then ended,
for the purpose of expressing an opinion as to whether the special-purpose financial statements
(the “financial statements™) present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position, results of
operations, and cash flows of Van Andel Arena, as managed by SMG, in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

We confirm that we are responsible for the following:

a. The fair presentation in the financial statements of financial position, results of operations,
and cash flows in conformity with the basis of presentation referred to in Note 2 to the
financial statements

b. The design, implementation, and maintenance of programs and controls to prevent and detect
fraud

c. Establishing and maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting.

Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to matters that are material.
Items are considered material, regardless of size, if they involve an omission or misstatement of
accounting information that, in light of surrounding circumstances, makes it probable that the

judgment of a reasonable person relying on the information would be changed or influenced by
the omission or misstatement.

We confirm, to the best of our knowledge and belief, the following representations made to you
during your audits.

I. The financial statements referred to above are fairly presented in conformity with the basis of
presentation referred to in Note 2 to the financial statements.

2. SMG - Van Andel Arena has provided to you all relevant information and access.as agreed in
the terms of the audit engagement letter. TW‘TS-FLACE

DeVos Placee

130 West Fulton 303 Monroe Ave. NW
Grand Rapids, M| 49503-2601 Grand Rapids, Ml 49503-2233

A7 A

B1E 742 &50
§1h 742 ¢




10.

11.

SMG - Van Ande! Arena has provided you:
a. Financial records and related data

b. Minutes of the meetings of stockholders, directors, and committees of directors or
summaries of actions of recent meetings for which minutes have not yet been prepared.

There have been no communications from regulatory agencies concerning noncompliance
with or deficiencies in financial reporting practices.

SMG - Van Andel Arena has provided to you the results of management’s risk assessment,
including the assessment of the risk that the financial statements may be materially misstated
as a result of fraud.

We have no knowledge of any fraud or suspected fraud affecting SMG - Van Andel Arena
involving:

a. Management

b. Employees who have significant roles in SMG — Van Andel Arena’s internal control over
financial reporting

c. Others, if the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements.

We have no knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting SMG — Van
Andel Arena received in communications from employees, former employees, analysts,
regulators, or others.

There are no unasserted claims or assessments that legal counsel has advised us are probable
of assertion and must be disclosed in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board
(FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 450, Contingencies.

Significant assumptions used by us in making accounting estimates are reasonable.

As an enterprise fund of the Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority, SMG
- Van Andel Arena is exempt from Federal Income Tax. We are not aware of any activities
that have taken place that would jeopardize SMG - Van Andel Arena's income tax exempt
status.

We believe the effects of the uncorrected financial statement misstatements detected in the
current year that relate to the prior year presented, when combined with those misstatements
aggregated by you during the prior year audit engagement and pertaining to the prior year
presented, are immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements
for the year ended June 30, 2013 taken as a whole.

Except where otherwise stated below, immaterial matters less than $23,000 collectively are not
considered to be exceptions that require disclosure for the purpose of the following
representations. This amount is not necessarily indicative of amounts that would require
adjustment to, or disclosure in, the financial statements.



12,

13.

14.

15.

16.

18.

19.

20.

There are no transactions that have not been properly recorded in the accounting records
underlying the financial statements.

SMG - Van Andel Arena has no plans or intentions that may affect the carrying value or
classification of assets and liabilities.

Regarding related parties:

a. We have disclosed to you the identity of the entity’s related parties and all the related
party relationships and transactions of which we are aware.

b. To the extent applicable, related parties and all the related-party relationships and

transactions of which SMG Van Andel Arena is aware, including sales, purchases, loans,
transfers, leasing arrangements, and guarantees (written or oral) have been appropriately
identified, properly accounted for, and disclosed in the financial statements,

In preparing the financial statements in conformity with the basis of presentation referred to

in Note 2 to the financial statements, management uses estimates. All estimates have been
disclosed in the financial statements for which known information available prior to the
issuance of the financial statements indicates that both of the following criteria are met:

a.

b.

It is at least reasonably possible that the estimate of the effect on the financial statements
of a condition, situation, or set of circumstances that existed at the date of the financial
statements will change in the near term due to one or more future confirming events.

The effect of the change would be material to the financial statements.

There are no:

a.

Violations or possible violations of laws or regulations whose effects should be
considered for disclosure in the financial statements or as a basis for recording a loss
contingency

Known actual or possible litigation and claims whose effects should be considered and
accounted for and disclosed in the financial statements and that have not been disclosed
to the auditor.

. SMG - Van Andel Arena has satisfactory title to all owned assets, and there are no liens or

encumbrances on such assets nor has any asset been pledged as collateral.

SMG - Van Andel Arena has complied with all aspects of contractual agreements that may
have an effect on the financial statements in the event of noncompliance.

No events have occurred after June 30, 2014, but before September 30, 2014, the date the
financial statements were issued that require consideration as adjustments to, or disclosures
in, the financial statements,

Receivables recorded in the financial statements represent valid claims against debtors for
sales or other charges arising on or before the balance-sheet date and have been appropriately
reduced to their estimated net realizable value.



21.
22.

23.

24,

25.

26.

We believe that all expenditures that have been deferred to future periods are recoverable.

We have no intention of withdrawing from the SMG Retirement and Savings Plan or taking
any other action that could result in an effective termination or reportable event for any of the
plans. We are not aware of any occurrences that could result in the termination of any of the
SMG Retirement and Savings Plan to which we contribute.

Provision has been made for any loss to be sustained in the fulfillment of, or from inability to
fulfill, any sales commitments, if required.

Sales with recourse provisions have been properly recorded and disclosed in the financial
statements.

We have fully disclosed to you all sales terms, including all rights of return or price
adjustments and all warranty provisions.

All documentation related to sales transactions is contained in customer files. We also
confirm that:

a. We are not aware of any “side agreements” with any companies that are inconsistent with
the applicable sales agreement, the customer’s purchase order, sales invoice, or any other
documentation contained in the customer’s file. For the purposes of this letter, a “side
agreement” is any agreement, understanding, promise, or commitment, whether written
(e.g., in the form of a letter or formal agreement or in the form of any exchange of
physical or electronic communications) or oral, by or on behalf of SMG — Van Andel
Arena (or any subsidiary, director, employee, or agent of SMG — Van Andel Arena) with
a customer from whom revenue has been recognized that is not contained in the written
purchase order from the customer or sales order confirmation and sales invoice of SMG -
Van Andel Arena delivered to or generated by SMG — Van Andel Arena’s Accounting
and Finance Department. The definition of a side agreement is not limited by any
particular subject matter. For purposes of example only, any agreement not contained in
the written purchase order from the customer or sales order and sales invoice of SMG —
Van Andel Arena that relates to return rights, acceptance rights, future pricing, payment
terms, free consulting, free maintenance, or exchange rights would be a side agreement.

b. We are not aware of any commitments or concessions to a customer regarding pricing or
payment terms outside of the terms documented in the customer’s file.

7

RichasdAsiice

’ is properly iichfded and does not ilI any ineligible income.

%




_onvention
Arena

Auvthority

APPENDIX B

CONVENTION 7/ ARENA AUIH'ORIXTI
FANELTAMALEE Y 2T N ENT e A ARSI s .

September 30, 2014

Deloitte & Touche LLP
Suite 600

38 Commerce SW
Grand Rapids, MI 49503

We are providing this letter in connection with your audits of the DeVos Place special-purpose
statements of assets, liabilities, and amount due Operator arising from the activities managed by
SMG ("SMG - DeVos Place") as of June 30, 2014 and 2013 and the related special-purpose
financial statements of operating revenues and operating expenses arising from activities
managed by SMG, changes in amount due operator arising from activities managed by SMG and
operating cash flows arising from activities managed by SMG for the years then ended, for the
purpose of expressing an opinion as to whether the special purpose financial statements (the
“financial statements”) present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position, results of
operations, and cash flows of DeVos Place, as managed by SMG, in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

We confirm that we are responsible for the following:

a. The fair presentation in the financial statements of financial position, results of operations,
and cash flows in conformity with the basis of presentation referred to in Note 2 to the
financial statements

b. The design, implementation, and maintenance of programs and controls to prevent and detect
fraud

¢. Establishing and maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting.

Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to matters that are material.
Items are considered material, regardless of size, if they involve an omission or misstatement of
accounting information that, in light of surrounding circumstances, makes it probable that the
Jjudgment of a reasonable person relying on the information would be changed or influenced by
the omission or misstatement.

We confirm, to the best of our knowledge and belief, the following representations made to you
during your audits.

1. The financial statements referred to above are fairly presented in conformity with the basis of
presentation referred to in Note 2 to the financial statements.

2. SMG - DeVos Place has provided to you all relevant information and access as agreed in the

terms of the audit engagement letter. D’F‘Lvrh H::ACE

DeVos Placee

H S A;ena' 303 Monroe Ave. NW
(I;?gn\éVeRs‘:pFi;,toxM 49503-2601 Grand Rapids, M__I 69503-2233
v T4 2 S0l

"42 450
rad &S0

1 i 4

s Ot




SMG - DeVos Place has provided you:
a. Financial records and related data

b. Minutes of the meetings of stockholders, directors, and committees of directors or
summaries of actions of recent meetings for which minutes have not yet been prepared.

There have been no communications from regulatory agencies concerning noncompliance
with or deficiencies in financial reporting practices.

SMG - DeVos Place has provided to you the results of management’s risk assessment,
including the assessment of the risk that the financial statements may be materially misstated
as a result of fraud.

We have no knowledge of any fraud or suspected fraud affecting SMG — DeVos Place
involving:

a. Management

b. Employees who have significant roles in SMG — DeVos Place’s internal control over
financial reporting

c. Others, if the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements.

We have no knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting SMG -
DeVos Place received in communications from employees, former employees, regulators, or
others.

There are no unasserted claims or assessments that legal counsel has advised us are probable
of assertion and must be disclosed in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board
(FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 450, Contingencies.

Significant assumptions used by us in making accounting estimates are reasonable.

. As an enterprise fund of the Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority, SMG

- DeVos Place is exempt from Federal Income Tax; we are not aware of any activities that
have taken place that would jeopardize SMG - DeVos Place's income tax exempt status.

Except where otherwise stated below, immaterial matters less than $29,000 collectively are not
considered to be exceptions that require disclosure for the purpose of the following
representations. This amount is not necessarily indicative of amounts that would require
adjustment to, or disclosure in, the financial statements.

1.

12.

There are no transactions that have not been properly recorded in the accounting records
underlying the financial statements.

SMG - DeVos Place has no plans or intentions that may affect the carrying value or
classification of assets and liabilities.

. Regarding related parties:



14,

15.

16.

17.

19.

20.

21,

a. We have disclosed to you the identity of the entity’s related parties and all the related
party relationships and transactions of which we are aware.

b. To the extent applicable, related parties and all the related-party relationships and
transactions of which SMG DeVos Place is aware, including sales, purchases, loans,
transfers, leasing arrangements, and guarantees (written or oral) have been appropriately
identified, properly accounted for, and disclosed in the financial statements.

In preparing the financial statements in conformity with the basis of presentation referred to
in Note 2 to the financial statements, management uses estimates. All estimates have been
disclosed in the financial statements for which known information available prior to the
issuance of the financial statements indicates that both of the following criteria are met:

a. [t is at least reasonably possible that the estimate of the effect on the financial statements
of a condition, situation, or set of circumstances that existed at the date of the financial
statements will change in the near term due to one or more future confirming events,

b. The effect of the change would be material to the financial statements.

There are no:

a. Violations or possible violations of laws or regulations whose effects should be
considered for disclosure in the financial statements or as a basis for recording a loss
contingency

b. Known actual or possible litigation and claims whose effects should be considered and
accounted for and disclosed in the financial statements and that have not been disclosed

to the auditor.

SMG - DeVos Place has satisfactory title to all owned assets, and there are no liens or
encumbrances on such assets nor has any asset been pledged as collateral.

SMG - DeVos Place has complied with all aspects of contractual agreements that may have
an effect on the financial statements in the event of noncompliance.

. No events have occurred after June 30, 2014, but before September 30, 2014, the date the

financial statements were issued that require consideration as adjustments to, or disclosures
in, the financial statements.

Receivables recorded in the financial statements represent valid claims against debtors for
sales or other charges arising on or before the balance-sheet date and have been appropriately
reduced to their estimated net realizable value.

We believe that all expenditures that have been deferred to future periods are recoverable.

We have no intention of withdrawing from the SMG Retirement and Savings Plan or taking
any other action that could result in an effective termination or reportable event for any of the
plans. We are not aware of any occurrences that could result in the termination of any of the
SMG Retirement and Savings Plan to which we contribute.



22.

23.

24,

25.

Provision has been made for any loss to be sustained in the fulfillment of, or from inability to
fulfill, any sales commitments, if required.

Sales with recourse provisions have been properly recorded and disclosed in the financial
statements.

We have fully disclosed to you all sales terms, including all rights of return or price
adjustments.

All documentation related to sales transactions is contained in customer files. We also
confirm that:

a. We are not aware of any “side agreements” with any companies that are inconsistent with

the applicable sales agreement, the customer’s purchase order, sales invoice, or any other
documentation contained in the customer’s file. For the purposes of this letter, a “side
agreement” is any agreement, understanding, promise, or commitment, whether written
(e.g., in the form of a letter or formal agreement or in the form of any exchange of
physical or electronic communications) or oral, by or on behalf of SMG — DeVos Place
(or any subsidiary, director, employee, or agent of SMG — DeVos Place) with a customer
from whom revenue has been recognized that is not contained in the written purchase
order from the customer or sales order confirmation and sales invoice of SMG — DeVos
Place delivered to or generated by SMG — DeVos Place’s Accounting and Finance
Department. The definition of a side agreement is not limited by any particular subject
matter. For purposes of example only, any agreement not contained in the written
purchase order from the customer or sales order and sales invoice of SMG — DeVos Place
that relates to return rights, acceptance rights, future pricing, payment terms, free
consulting, free maintenance, or exchange rights would be a side agreement.

We are not aware of any commitments or concessions to a customer regarding pricing or
payment terms outside of the terms documented in the customer’s file.

26. For the purpose of calculating the incentive fee, all interest income included in the calculation
is properly ingluded and does not include any ineligible income.

J/W(/\




APPENDIX C
SECTION | — SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCIES

We consider the following deficiency in the Van Andel Arena’s internal control over financial reporting
to be a significant deficiency as of June 30, 2014:

During our testing of accounts receivable for the Van Andel Arena, we identified a balance that was
incorrectly recorded as a receivable that should have been expensed when incurred. This misstatement
occurred due to the lack of preparation and review of an account reconciliation related to this specific
account. We consider the omission of an internal control related to the preparation and review of an
account reconciliation associated with this account to be a significant deficiency in internal controls.

SECTION Il — DEFINITIONS
The definitions of a deficiency, a significant deficiency, and a material weakness are as follows:

A deficiency in internal control over financial reporting exists when the design or operation of a control
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A deficiency in design exists when (a) a
control necessary to meet the control objective is missing or (b) an existing control is not properly
designed so that, even if the control operates as designed, the control objective would not be met. A
deficiency in operation exists when (a) a properly designed control does not operate as designed, or

(b) the person performing the control does not possess the necessary authority or competence to perform
the control effectively.

A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over financial
reporting that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those
charged with governance.

A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over financial
reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.

% %k ok %k k K



Item g

@ Van Andel Arena’ /

Do —
Privats Sasepsaeat tor Podtic fochiny

DeVos Place

Memorandum

To: CAA Board Members

From: Rich MacKeigan — Regional General Manager
Date: December 1, 2014

Re: Area 2 Parking Study

Attached is the Van Andel Parking Structure Feasibility Study completed by Progressive AE. As you are
aware, a task force of Steve Heacock, Charlie Secchia, Rick Winn, and SMG staff worked with Progressive
for the last few months to conduct this analysis. The findings are included in the attached.

The outcome of this work demonstrates that a parking structure on area 2 can be built on the site and
can accommodate the operational needs of the Van Andel Arena®. Additionally, feedback from
stakeholders in the area indicates that the need for parking south of Fulton is a growing need, and such
a parking facility would be well received. A full comprehensive needs assessment should be undertaken
to confirm what is believed to be the case.

There was some dialogue amongst the task force about ‘other development’ of Area 2...is a parking
structure the best use?...are there other complimentary plans that could be included in parking
structure?...do we (CAA) have the expertise to capitalize on these options?...? The task force
unanimously feels that parking and operational needs are paramount to the future success of the Van
Andel Arena®.

These discussions resulted in three conclusions.

1. The CAA has the expertise to take on the parking and operational needs requirements of such a
project. In short, we can build the basic ramp on our own.

2. The exploration of further development, which could include residential, commercial, retail,
entertainment, etc. could greatly benefit the community and possibly mitigate some of the
financial exposure to the CAA; however, the CAA does not have the expertise to assess the best
opportunities.

3. The Task Force acknowledges there may be development concepts we have not considered that
could work very well for the site.

In light of these conclusions, the Task Force requests the following action...

1. The CAA to receive the report from Progressive and identify the operational needs
contained within as the essentials of the project.



2, The CAA to commission a market assessment study to identify with certainty, what
parking demand exists now and into the future, for Area 2.

3. The CAA approve Dick Wendt to work with Rich MacKeigan to prepare a Request for
Qualifications to be cast in an effort to solicit options and plans for the development of
Area 2 that would include the CAA’s needs and could include a variety of other possible
developments for the site.

4, The CAA place a deadline of December 15 for the completion of the RFQ.

5. The CAA place a deadline of March 1 for submission of responses to the RFQ

6, The CAA place a deadline of June 1 for a final recommendation to come forward for the
CAA’s consideration

The Task Force member are available should there be any questions.



Van Andel Arena’ /

M DeVos Place

D reree e
Frivats Racopduset N Pobits loclitrtey

Memorandum

To: CAA Board Members

From: Richard MacKeigan ~ SMG Regional General Manager
Date: Monday, December 01, 2014

Re: Van Andel Arena® Show Fund

Ll

in September 2008, the CAA approved the creation of a “risk fund” for DeVos Perfomance Hall. This
action permits SMG to ‘risk’ up to $100,000 for shows at DeVos Performance Hall. The last three fiscal
years, this fund has been used 14 times and the cumulative impact has been a positive $106,500 to the
theater’s bottom line. it has worked effectively.

I would like to take the same concept and apply it to Van Andel Arena®. The scale being larger (five
times the capacity) but the business practice remaining the same. The landscape for arena level
concerts continues to be very competitive. Venues are more aggressive than ever in attempting to
Secure concert programming. | am requesting that SMG be allowed to enter into contracts that put the
facility at financial risk when the correct opportunities present themselves, and be allowed to do so up
to an accumulative guarantee of $500,000 at any one point in time. While we are asking for a “fund"” to
be created, all revenue generated from these events will remain in the operating financial statement of
Van Andel Arena®.

While the focus of our bookings will continue to work with promoters in a more straightforward rental of
the facility, we want to be able to react to opportunities when such action is prudent and makes good
business sense.

I'am requesting the CAA approve SMG to be permitted to risk facility funds up to $500,000 for booking
events at Van Andel Arena®.

I am available should you have any questions, comments or concerns.

Item 6




DeVos Place® Event Calendar

December 2014

START END TYPE EVENT
12/01/14 | 12/04/14 C 2014 Annual Show - Ml Farm Bureau

12/02/14 P GVSU Commencement

12/02/14 Storytelling Pictures
12/03/14 | 12/07/14 P GRS Holiday Pops

12/04/14 R Fidelity Investments Holiday Pops Reception
12/04/14 | 12/07/14 S Gymnastics on the Grand 2014

12/05/14 B GE Aviation Holiday Party

12/08/14 B Holland Home Christmas Dinner
12/08/14 | 12/15/14 P GRB The Nutcracker

12111/14 B GRB Hospice Event

12/11/14 M Georgetown University Leadership Program
1211114 | 12114114 M 2014 Annual Employee Meeting - GFS
12/19/14 | 12/21/14 P GRB The Nutcracker
12/07/114 | 12/12/14 C 2014 Great Lakes Fruit, Vegetable and Farm Market

12112114 M 2014 C s Meefings ( =
12/16/14 | 12/17/14 B Nestlé Gerber 2014 Innovatron Awards Celebratron
12/16/14 | 12/18/14 P GRS Cirque De Noel
12/117/14 | 12/18/14 B Amway Hotel Collection Holiday Celebration
12/19/14 | 12/21/14 P GRB The Nutcracker

12/23/14 P Grand Rapids Original Swing Society - Swing Dancing |

12/123/14 P GRS: Sandi Patty Yuletide Joy

Iltem 7



VAN ANDEL ARENA® WEEKLY

DATE ‘14 EVENT EC | MOD ROOM TIME FUNCTION
Wed, Dec 3 | Available
Thur, Dec 4 | Grand Valley State University |KP Arena 2:00 PM Pre-rig
Fri, Dec 5 Griffins vs Oklahoma City KP [TODD | Arena 10A-12:30P Team practice
6:00 PM Doors
7P-9:30P Hockey game
Crease Club 6P-9P Grand Haven Cheer Team
Electro-Matic SH Banquet B/C 6P-8:30P Banquet
Amway Section A
MayDay Avionics KS Banquet D/Suite 120A | 6P-9:30P Banquet
All Phase Electric West Nest 6P-9:30P Banquet
Maplecreek East Nest 6P-9:30P Banquet
Stallard Asphalt MOS Corner Office | 6P-9:30P Banquet
Retirement Living Management Suite 101A/B 6P-9:30P Banquet
Sat, Dec 6 Grand Valley State University [KP [TODD | Arena 1:00 AM Load-in
4:00 AM Set carpet and chairs
5:00 AM Crew breakfast
8:00 AM Sound check
8:30 AM Doors open to concourse hold
8:45 AM Doors to bowl
9:45A-12P Commencement ceremony
12:00 PM Load-out
Sun, Dec 7 Trans-Siberian Orchestra IKP ICHRIS | Arena 4:00 AM Floor mark
5:00 AM Rigging call
7:00 AM Load-in
12:00 PM Chair set
2:00 PM Doors
3P-5:20P Performance #1
5:20P-6:30P Quick clean
6:30 PM Doors
7:30P-9:50P Performance #2
9:30 PM Load-out call
SH Banquet All 6A-9P Backstage catering
Mon, Dec 8 | Available
Tue, Dec 9 Bob Seger KP ICHRIS | Arena 7:30 PM Performance
Wed, Dec 10 | Griffins vs Lake Erie KP ILYNNE| Arena 10A-12:30P Team practice
6:00 PM Doors
7P-9:30P Hockey game
Spectrum Health KS West Nest 6P-9:30P Banquet
Echelon Property Management East Nest 6P-9:30P Banquet
Michigan Office Solutions MOS Comer Office | 6P-9:30P Banquet
Gull Lake Villas Crease Club 6P-9:30P Banquet
Advanced Finish Suite 101A/B 6P-9:30P Banquet
Citizens Insurance Suite 120A 6P-9:30P Banquet
Thur, Dec 11 | Advantage Sales and Marketing [SH Banquet All 2P-6P Banquet
Fri, Dec 12 | Available
Sat, Dec 13 | Gaither Christmas Homecoming KP IKATHY| Arena 6:00 PM Performance
Sun, Dec 14 | Available
Mon, Dec 15 | Available
Tue, Dec 16 | WWE Smackdown Live KP ICHRIS | Arena 6:45 PM Performance
Wed, Dec 17 | Available
Thur, Dec 18 | Kent County HR Staff SH The Intermission 11:30 AM Holiday luncheon




Fri, Dec 19 Griffins vs Toronto P [EDDIE | Arena 10A-12:30P Team practice
6:00 PM Doors
7P-9:30P Hockey game

Westmaas Electric SH Banquet B 5P-7P Banquet
Baby Derby Winner KS West Nest 6P-9:30P Banquet
Informs East Nest 6P-9:30P Banquet
Perrigo MOS Corner Office | 6P-9:30P Banquet
EnerSys Crease Club 6P-9:30P Banquet
RHD Tire Suite 101A 6P-9:30P Banquet
Abbie Groff-Blaszak Suite 101B 6P-9:30P Banquet
Rick Edgerle Suite 120A 6P-9:30P Banquet

Sat, Dec 20 | Available

Sun, Dec 21 | Available

Mon, Dec 22 | Available

Tue, Dec 23 | Available

Wed, Dec 24 g 4 25

SMG Holiday """ &

Thur, Dec 25

SMG Holiday m‘-‘

Fri, Dec 26 Available

Sat, Dec 27 | Griffins vs Iowa KP IM Arena 10A-12:30P Team practice
6:00 PM Doors
7P-9:30P Hockey game
9:30P-10:10P__ | Post-game autographs

Fran St. Martin KS West Nest 6P-10:10P Banquet
Image Quest Printing East Nest 6P-10:10P Banquet
Premier Freight Management MOS Corner Office | 6P-10:10P Banquet
Fox Motors Suite 101A/B 6P-10:10P Banquet

Sun, Dec 28 | Available

Mon, Dec 29 | Available

Tue, Dec 30 | Available

Wed, Dec 31 | Griffins vs Rockford KP [JIM Arena 10A-12:30P Team practice
5:00 PM Doors
6P-8:30P Hockey game
8:30P-9:10P Post-game skate

Griff's Ice House KS West Nest 5P-9:10P Banquet
Gilson Graphics East Nest 5P-9:10P Banquet
Chuck Listen MOS Corner Office 5P-9:10P Banquet
Farm Bureau Insurance Suite 101A 5P-9:10P Banquet
Bieri Auto Body Suite 101B 5P-9:10P Banquet

Thur, Jan | Available

Fri, Jan 2 Griffins vs Milwaukee KP Arena 10A-12:30P Team practice
6:00 PM Doors
7P-9:30P Hockey game

ROK Systems S West Nest 6P-9:30P Banquet
West Side Beer Distributing East Nest 6P-9:30P Banquet
Granger Group MOS Corner Office 6P-9:30P Banquet
Daniel Msyzak Suite 101A 6P-9:30P Banquet
Allison Hedstrom Suite 101B 6P-9:30P Banquet
Sat, Jan 3 Available
Sun, Jan 4 Winter Jam KP Arena 6:00 PM Performance




